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INDIAN  RAILWAY FINANCE CORPORATION  LTD.
(A Government of India  Enterprise)   (CIN  :  L65910DL1986G01026363)
Regd. Office :  Room Nos.1316 -1349, 3rd  Floor,   The Ashok,   Diplomatic Enclave:-50-8, Chanakyapuri,  New Delhi-110021

Phone  :  oil-24ioo385,  E-mail  :  info@irfc.nic.in,  Website  :  www.irfc.nic.in

No: IRFC/SE/2022-23/45                                                                                                                                  loth November, 2022

Natlonal Stock Exchange of India Llmlted BSE Limited
Listing department, Exchange Plaza, Listing Dept / Dept of Corporate Services,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) P) Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai-400 051 Mumbai -400 001

Scrip Symbol: IRFC Scrip Code: 543257

Sub: OutcoT

Sir/ Madam,

This is to inform that pursuant to the applicable provisious OfsEBI (LODR)  Regulatious, 2015, the Board of Directors of
the Company at its meeting herd on Thursday,loth November 2022 inter alia, considered and approved the following.

1.   Apt]ri]nJ I]r the LJn-DdJted FIB.LrLdll RfniJti ror th£ I]_urtBr lad bjilrTdr mdnd 30tL SEptemJ]d. 202Z

Pursuant to Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, this is to inform that Board
of Directors considered and approved the Unraudited Financial Results of the Company and other financial statements
namely Cash  Flow Statement for the quarter and half year ended  30th  September 2022  and  Balance Sheet as on that
date  along  with  Statutory  Auditor's  Limited  Review  Report  thereon.  The  Un-audited  financial  results  have  been
reviewed  by the Audit Committee and approved & taken on record by the  Board of Directors of the company in their
respective meetings held on loth November 2022.

The disclosure of related party transaction in terms of Regulation 23(9) of SEBI  (LODR)  Regulations, 2015 is enclosed
herewith.  Further,  disclosure  in  accordance  with  Regulation  52(4)  &  54  of SEBI  (LODR)  Regulations,  2015  and  the
impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the Company in terms of SEBI circular dated May 20, 2020 is mentioned  in the said
financial results

2.   Declarat]on ofhrerim l"dend

Pursuant to Regulation 30 and 43 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulatious, 2015, as amended from time to time this is to inform
that the Board of Directors have declared an Interim Dividend of Rs. a:J89/-per equity share of Rs 10/-each.

Further, as informed vide letter dated 4th November 2022, the "Record date" for determining eliglbility of shareholders
for payment of the said interim Dividend, as declared by the Board is Friday,  18th November 2022.

The  dividend will  be  paid  in the  account of the  shareholder(s)  or the  dividend warrant(s)  in  respect thereof will  be
dispatched within thirty (30) days from the date of declaration  Shareholder(s) are kindly requested to update/ submit
details for TDS on dividend  to  Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company at irfc@beetalfinanciaLcom  on or before
Friday,18th November 2022.

No  communication  on  the  tax determination/deduction  Of tax at  lower rates  shall  be  entertained  after  Frlday,  18th
November 2022. It is further informed that in case tax on dividend is deducted at a higher rate in the absence of requisite
details/ documents, refund of the excess tax paid may still be claimed by shareholders at the time of filing of income tax
return. However, no claim shall lie against the Company for such taxes deducted.  Further, shareholders will be able to
see the credit of TDS in Form 26AS, which can be downloaded from their e-filing account at Income Tax portal.

Themeetingcommencedats:Zap.M.andconcludedatrfu"Thisissubmittedforyourinformationandrecord.

Thanking You,
FoigRailwayFinancecorporationLjmited

(Vljay Babulal Shirode)
Company Secretary & Compliance OfrLcer

ifeigA:Above



lNOIAN  RAILWAY  FINANC CORPORATtoN  UMITED

IA Government ndle Enterprlse)

CIN L65910D11986G01026363

Reglste]ed offlce: Room Nco.  1316 -  1349, 3rd Flooi, The Ash Dlplol7iatlc Enclave, 50.8, Chal`akyapuri Now DelhJ ,110021

Ph.: oil-Z41cO385, Emall: lnvestors rfe.co.in, webelte: htti.s://lrfc.co.in

Extract of Statemout Of Unaudited Flnanclal Results for the quarter end hal( yeai ended 30 September ZOZZ

(Amounts ln mlmons a( lNR, unless stated otherwl5e)

Particulars

Cufartef En ded Ha lf Year Ended Year Ended

30Septembel20Z2
30 June 2022

30 SeptembeiZ021 soSeptemberZ022 sO September2021
31 March 2022

lumudlted`. lunaudlledl. lunaudlted`.' lunaudltedt lumudJtedl 'Audited'

Ill Revenue  From Ooeiatlone 58,098.03 56,274.36 46J}99.20 1,„.31239 9Z.Ju.3J 2,02,98!.cO

1„1 Net Ploflt for the I.erlod  lbetore Tax and Exceotlonal itemsl 17,14Z.cO 16,G15.80 1SJ)14.81 33,|SBJSO sofoso`3Z coro\.55

(1'1' Net Profit for tl`e I.eriod  before Tax lafler Elcei]tlonal ltems` 17.14Z.80 16,615.80 1SJ)14.81 33,758.cO sOJ'3J'32 60,901.55

(lv) Net Profit for the period  after Tax (after Excel)tlonal Items) 17,14Z.80 16,615.80 1SD14.81 33,lsB.cO Sol.3432 cOJ398.36

(V) Total Comprehensive Income (or tl.e I)erlod  [comi)rl5lng Profit for the period aftel tax and Other 17,15Z.6Z 16,608.05 |S".29 33JcO.6| sOJ'3|.ut cOR93.36

Comorehenslve Income after tax]

( Pald uD Eouitv Share Caoital lFace Value ol Rs.  10/.  Per Shaiol 1,30,685.06 1,30,68S.06 I,30,685.06 i,sO,685.06 1,30.6a5.06 1,30,cos.06

I Other Eauitv Excludlna Rev3tuatlon Reserves as oer balance Sheet 3,04,80S.85 2,95,886.39 2,58,486.18 3,04J}05.85 2j8A86`18 2.]911834
Securltles Premium Account 19,008.74 19,008.74 19,008.74 19,008.74 19".74 19,008.74

( Net Wortli 4,35,490.91 4,Z6,S71.45 3£9.,|L20 4,35,490.91 3£9,171.24 4,09,963.40

( Pald up Debt Cai)ital/OutEtandlng Debt 38,67,158.cO 38,76,740.56 34,Z6,976.12 38,67,1S8.cO 34,Z6,976. 12 38j4,166.18

( Debt Eaultv Ratlo 8.88 9.09 8.81 8.88 8.81 9.47

( Eamlng Per Share (Of Rs.  10 each)
-  Elaslc  'Rs.I 1.31 1.Z7 1.15 2.58 2.30 4.66

I  DJJu`ed  (Rs.I 1.31 I.Z7 1.15 2.58 2.30 4.66

Note:

1         The above tinancial results have  boeii revie`^/ed  bythe Audit Commltt®e and approved and taken on record  bythe  Board ofOirectois attheir rospective rneetJng held  onThureday,loth  November 2022

2         The  above   ls  an  extract  Of  the  detailed  format  for  the  quarter  and   half  voa/  ended   30  September  2022  financlal   results  filed   wlth   the  stock  exchange  under  Regulation   33  a   Regulatic)n   S2  of  the  SEBl   (ListLng

Obllga`ion   and   Disclosure   Requlrements)   Regulatloms,   2015    The   full   format   of   the   qilar`er   and   half   veer   ondod   30   September   2022   flmanclal   results   is   avaJlable   on   the   websito   Of   the   stock   exchanges

(w\^/\^/.bselndia,com  and  www. nselndla  com)  and  the  webslte  Of the  Compa ny  (https.//lrfc.co,ln).

3         PrevJous periods f.gures have  been regrouped/rearranged  wher®var considered necessary

4         Shareholders  holding shares  in dematerialized  mode  are  reques`od  to  update thelr records such  as tax residontial status,  and  permanent account  number (PAN),  register their email addresses,  mobile  numbers  and

other detalls with the  relevant dopositories through the`i depository perticlpants, Shareholders  holding Shares in physJcal mode  are  requested to furnish dctalls to  the  Campany's  Registrar and  Sha re Tra nsfer Agent,

M/s  Bootal  Financi-al  &  Computer  Servlces  ( P)  ltd  at  irfc@beotalfina ncial.comi,,.11€&se9uMDtAddn,c;i;N:i;7!n:¥3#

Importwlllbe

:::dNf°ot;Cs:n#abeffir::i,ad'::::::et:,':urgeh8:::ra/,1:nd:i;i£};::=Lma" 'D WL`h c°mpeny at mvest°rs@l      cif|fiil|H!                      a        v.S Reglstrar a Sha ro Transfer A8en` at irfc@beetallinancia| com  which

q,.                                 RT+''# 'ae



lNOIAN  RAILWAY  FINANCE cORPOFtA110N  UMITED

IA Go`.emmert of lndfa En ta,l„ke'
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Ra&lssoied cmica. Room Nos 1316 -1349, 3rd ooi, The Asdok Dlpromall( Enaave, 5ole, Cn3natei.ul New Delhl-11co21
Ph.: oil-241oo38S, Emall: lnyestors@lrtcco. n, Weeslle: vw.Inc.co.In

Statement of stondalona Un®udited Flnandel Resul.S foi the quarter 8nd half veal ®ndod 30 September 2022

(Amoums ln mlllloes Of LNR,  urdes5 stated  othor`irlse)
`         v        ^~.7:^vrzz=Z3%~.=*3iv/;;                           €..    v     .  v--- Qu.rter End"; .  ut   ¥              H®lfyear Ended Year Ended

pO,.:]¢\tla,,.:    ::A:::              ::i:^ii22as=y=2.i:i  :~           :^,=~-A        A 30SeF8.whrZOZZ soJijne202Z¥^
30 Septembe. ~aps€ptembe, so S.ptember

3i maich Zo22
v::v, r                   : =iifgg±ii: ;>g§i£;/i;!!:::;apRE:£;fz;;:iifz;::/Si3fgse -v    A -      mmud',ed', 'Ult,uditedl. lunaudrted)I Iungudltedl [Undwhch` IAud'ted'

Revem (ron operations
\ `   : 3 , 1\ `, 16,985.98 16,516 0S 34,224.0\ 33,117.46 72,946  72(I)              Interest  Income

(il)              Lease  Income 40 8coloo 39  288 38 30 38315 80  148.38 59  S9S  91 .30,035-96

(I)            Total  Revenue  From oper®tions 5G,098.03 56,Z74.36 46,899.20 I,1..37Z.39 92.|\33J246 2,02.98Z.68996

(11)             I)wldend  Income(IJI)OtherIncome
5sO 030

a,99021
620 062 2333

(lv)          Tot8Irncome(l+II+Ill) 5e,i03.93 56,274.66 46,goo.40 L14.378.S9 92,716.45 2fro;.rs.9i

40.585  40 39,396.38 3\.S7\ 29 79,98,18 62.306  22 1,cO,14182
Expenses
i)               Flnance  costs

(H)              Impalrment on  Flnanclal  lnstn.ments 542 (46  61) 1392 (41  19) (8  76) 461

nl)            Emplcyyee  Benefit  Expense 3815 2622 2166 6437 3966 107  48

lv)            Depreclatlon.  Amortlzatton  and  [mpalrmen` 3507 3505 31OS 7012 6206 140  25

v)             Other €xpense5
239  50 215  53 216  36 455  03 216  36 956  58I Corporate 5oclal  Responslbilrty (esR)

- Others S759 3229 31.31 8988 6659 157  68

(V)           To`al Expenses 40 9€ 1.13 39,658.86 3i.ee5.59 80  619.99 62 682.13 i ce  114.42

17,142  80 16,615  80 15,014  81 ' 3  ` \ , h ., \ ,\ v\ `\ 1  ' `- 60,901 SS
(VI)          P/ofi`  Before  Exceo`lonel  l`®ng®ndTax(IV-V)

(Vn)         Exceptlonal  Items

(VllI)       Proft  Before  Tor(VI-VII) 17,i4|8a 16,615.cO 15,01, 81 33,ls8`cO 30,034.32 60,90155319

(IX)          TarExpense
• Currem  Tax

•  Deferred  Tax

• Ad|ustment for  Earlier Years

Tctal Tax Expenses 3.19

(X|           Proflt for the  period From  contlnuln8 0peretlons (VIIl-IX) 17.|®Z.80 16 61S.80 15,014J}1 3,.158.cO 30.034.3Z 60,898.36

sO.03+32

(XI)          Profit from  Discontlnued  operattor`s
(Xll)        TaxExpenseofDi5continued  operatlons

(XIII)       Proft from Dlscon`lnued operetlons (Afto. Tax)  (XL-XW)

(XIV)      Pioftfor.hepeilod(I+Xlll)) 17 142.80 16.615.80 |S.014.81 33.ISBJsO 60,898.36

140 140 027 280 OS4 561

(X\/)       Othe.Comprehensive Income
(A)    (.) Items that wlll  not be  reclas5lfied  to  profit or  lossfdfiedbfiI

-Rerneasurement  o      e  ln           ene  lt  pans-Bemea5urementofEquityIr`strument
8.42 (9  lsl (8 79) (0  73) 256 (10  61)

(H)  I ncome tax  rela`Ing `o  .tem5 that will  be  reclasslfled to profit or  loss
•  flemeasurement  of defined  benefLt  I)lens

•  Bemeasu rement  of Equrtv  Instrument

S|'l''oto' (A) 9J'Z (,.75) (8.52' 2.07 ),0 (5  00)

(B)     (.)  Items that will  be  reclaislf[ed  to  profit or loss

( li)  Income tax  relating to  Items that w"  be  reclasslfled to  profit  or loss
Subtotal (a)

(XVI)      Onercompreherslve lroome (A+B) 9J)2 (7.75) (8.52) I.07 3.10 (5.00)

|Xvll)     Total  comprohenstv®  Income tor the  veer (Xvltx]V) 17.15Z.62 16,cog.05 `S.006.29 3.leo.6| sO.037.42 60,893.36

(xvHl)   Pald        I   ultvsharecaol`al (Fece valueofRs.10/-Parshorol 1.3Ope5.ce 1 sO 68s crs 1  30  685  06 \.sO.68S  063,04,80585 1 30,68S,C6 \ sO 68S 062,19,27834
uPq(XIX)OtherEqulty ExcludJng aevaluatlon Reserves es per balance sheet

3,Oupe5.Bs 2,g5,ce6 39 2,58,48618 2,58,486  18

(XX|        Tl.e.ppllcable  Analytleel  Ratlos erid o`hoi dlsdo5uies  are  as  under.

1`31 i.27 115 2S8 230 466

Earning5 per equitv share  (face Value of fls   10/-   per Share)

(Before  I nitlal  Publlc  Offer)
- Baslc  mi )

•  Diiuted  (Rs  I 1`31 127 i.15 258 230 466

(XXI)       Addftloael  lnformctlon
86.36 86.36 86.36 8636 8636 8636Percentage  of shares  held  bv Govemmen`  of lndla

Net  Worth 4  35  490  91 4  26  S714S 3  89171  24 4  35  490 91 3  89171  24 a,og.963 co
•See Note  no   12



INDiAr\i  RAiiwAy flNANCE cORpORATioN  LIMITED

(A Go`/emrmert ol tndla Enterprke)
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Standalone Statement Of Assets a LlabnJtles
/Amunts to mnJlons of INR. unless ste`ed otherwisel

partlalbn                A                           ~`   „        ,y.,A    yy^y^r-Lr_A
A8,t30S.oternbei 20Z2 A3a'soS.btember Z02l -Ai,t^31M.reh ZOZZ

AssErsFlnanclal A5sets

81 ,221 84 ZO ,log cO 1,464  92Cash  And  Cash  Equivalents

Bank  Balance other Than  Above 9,556  43 762 48 I,S68  84

Oerrvat lve Fln a ncia I  I n s` ru me nt5 5,060 29 936  30 2,023  25

ReceIvables-Lea5o  Reeeivables

21,97,295  71 \7,39,8428S 20.06,924  99

loans S9,33126 + .,  » ,  \, ` 68, 248  05

Investments 9638 117  69 loo 03
Other F]nanclal  A5set5 2166 004  16 2137  116 34 22 41 119 \8

Total  I:ln8ncl8I  Ascots 45  24  S72.07 39.61.192`11 43 28 lo9`Z6

6,277  49 9,307  70 6,373  08

Nan-finenclel  ass.`s

Current  Tax Aisels  (Net)

Property,  plant And  Equlpment 133  54 11198 138  86

Rlght  of use Assets 164.52 283  98 224  25

Other Intangible Assets 1598 1134 16.51

Ot her N a n-Fl na n c .a I Assets 1  20  814  2S 1  09  166  59 Lfro,9ao  28

Total Nob.Flrnd®l Assatl 1_27.405.78 118 881.59 .1,.692.98

Total Assets 46.51  977.85 40 86 674`30 44 sO,802.24

11,200  26194 \   StQ  o .`201 5,669  331002

LiABIiiTiEs  AND  EQulrv

llABILITIES

Flmanclal  LI®bllltlel

Derivatlve  Flnancial  lr`struments

Payables
• Trade  pevables

(1| Total outstandlng dues of micro  enterprises and  small  enterprlses

(11) To(al  outstandlng dues  of creditors other than  mlcro  enterprises  and  small
• other payables

(I) Total outstondlng dues of mlcrq  enterprise$ and  small  enterprlses

(ii) Total  outstanding dues  of credltors  other than  mlcro  enterprlses  and  rmall 220  86 250 82 235  69

De bt secu r rtles 9,80,\9230 \9,31,09149 19,41,749  53

Borrowings  (other Than  Debt  Securl`Ies) \8ft6,966,SO •afig,88i`.63 19,42,416  65

Lease   Liabl]Ities 174  78 290  53 233  52

Other  Flnanclal  Uabl[.tles 3 3136413 2 2\ 293 06 194  2S196

Total  Fin®nclal  lfablll`les 42 10 121 37 36  5Z  622.16 40  84  566.70

829  38 291  57 535  71

Non.Flnanaal  llablJlllei

Current Tax  Liabilmes  (Net)

Provislons

Deferred  Tax  liabilitres  (Net)

5  536  19 44  589.33 4  736  43Other  Non-Flnancial  llabllltles

Total  Nan-FJn®ncJ®l Llabllltles 6  36S.57 44 coo . so 5  Z72,14

Total  uabilltles 42 16 486.94 ac.gi.sos.o6 co,89 a3a.a4

I.30.685  06 1,30,685  06 1,30,685  06
Equlty

Equrty  Share  Capital

otherEqurty 3 04 sos.BS 2  58,486  18 2  79  278  34

Total  Equ'ty 4.35  490.91 I,9 \, \ 2\ 4,09,963.40
I

Tot8J  Llabllltles A]id Eaultv 46.51  977.85 I            40 86 674`30 ca.99,cOz.20

S+f;#TiipA3



INDIAN  RAILWAY  FINANCE cORPORATtoN  UMITED

(A Government Of lndla Entoipilse)
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Regis`eied Offlce: l`oom Nee 1316 -1349, 3rd Floor,llctel The Achok Diplom8tlc Ericlavo, 50-a, Ch3mkyopul Ne`^/ Delhi-11cOZ1

Ph.: all-24100385, froam investoi6@Jric.co.In, Webs!te: m"r.Irtt.co.In

Stundaloive rfetement tor the casli flo`.c for the half `.eon ended 30 Seotember 2022
/Amo`m`s  ln mllLlons Of INR.  unless stated olhenwlse)

panculars
Holf veer Ended30September H8lfv®®r EndedsoSaptomber

ye®r End.d31Ma.ch2022

A.    CASH  FLOW FROM OPERATING  ACTIVITIES

.T58 60 sol.3A3Z 60,901.55Profit  before taxes

Ad{ustments /or :Remeasurement Of  Defined  Benefit  Plans

280 OS4 561

Depreciatlor) and Amortlsatlon  (Inc)udLng adjustment to  ROU  assets)' 701249890 6206 140  25

Provision  a   Interest  on  Income TaxlossonSaleofFlxedAssets

003 003

Profit on  Sale ot Fixed  AssetsDlscoun`ofCommercialPaper

246  14 324  49

Adiu5tmenl5 Towards  Ef/ectIve  ln`eres`  Rate 398  26 797  98

Interest  Expense  on  lease  liabiltties 577 905 1648

Dlv.dend  Income  Received (2'46) (9  96)

Share  Issue  Expenses /103)

Operatlng Prom 8®lor® Wo/klng Capital ChanBas 3®336.,9 sO.|J\1  9® 62,175.cO

Movamontl  In Werkrn8 CapJ`el

(22  91) (254  78) (26190)Increase/(Decrease)  in Payables

increase/(Decrease)  in  ProvisLor)s 293.67 035 244  49

Increase/(Decrease)  in  olheJs  Non  Financial  Liabimies 799.76 3 0,J89 13 (9,063  17)

increase/(Decrease)  Ln  Other  Flnancial  Habilnles l,28f il9 61 49,562  08 (1,777  07)

Decrease/(Increase)  in  Recowables (1,90,ilo-12' (84,1S2  94) (3,51,235  08)

Decrease/(Increase)  ln  Loans and  Advances 8,916.79 1,4SO  10 1,45010

Decrease/(Increase)  in  Bank  Balance other Than  Cash  and  Cash  Equivalent! 11.987  S9' 8S4  85 4849

Decrease/(Increase)  in  Other  Non  Financlal  As5cts 44,126  03 (cO,54S  98) (96,3SO  29)

Decrease/(Increase)  in  Other  Financial A5scts 81  014  S4 (165  880  621 /2  S2  31139`

Cash Generated Fiom op®ra`loas 99,98S3l (1,77,429`Z7) (6,.7,080.42)
Less   DLrect Taxes  Pald  (Net of  Refunds) (95  59) \ '2  957  60'

Net Cash  FJo`^r/(Used)  In Operstlng ActMtle. (A) .00.080.96 11  77 4tt.72` (6 ~ 122.8Z`

(4 54) (15  85)003 (66   33)

8.     CASH  FLOWS FROM  INVESTING  ACTIVITIES

Purchase Of Property  Plant &  Equipments  and  lntangible Assets

Proceeds  From Sale Of Property  Plant  a  [quipmentProceedsFromReal/za(IonofPassThroughCertlflcates / Sale  of Investments
292 469 918

Dlvidend  Income  Recelved 246 996

Not C8!h  Flow/(Ueao  ln lrwestlng Activltl®!  (8) '162' '8.671 '¢7  ro\

38,362.OS I,40,322  33 l,84f i34 63

C`    CASII  Flows  FROM  FINANCING  ACTIVI"ES

Proceeds from  155ue of Equity Share Capltal

Proceeds  from  5ecurfty  Prer"u in

155ue  Of Debt  Securit/es (Net  of Redemptlons)

Ral5Ing Of Rupee Term  Loans/  Forolgn  Curreney  Bar.owlngs  (Net  of Repayments) (52,614.36) 44, 216 31 4,97,314  74

15sue Of Commorcial  Paper  (Not  Of Repayments)PaymentsforleaseI[ab[IIties(/nc[udingln`erest)

(64.51)

|0,70S  24(6440) (29,294  76)(12884)

Share  ls5ue  Expenses

Final  Dlvidend   Paid
/10  062  75\In`erlm  Drvldend  Pald

Net Cash Generated ev/(Used ln) Flmandng ActM`lei (C| / 1¢ 316 .4Zl I 95,179A8 6 42 663 02

Net lrtcreaso ln  Cash end Cech Equivalont§ (A+8+C) 85.162.9Z t,   ,,09 11,506.99)

Cash  and  Cash  Equivalents at the  beglnning Of the  Perk)d 1  464  92 2.97\191 2  97191

Cash end Cosh fauivalen<s et the End Of (he  Peilod 8, ,Z, u ZO  709 00 146¢.9Z



NorES:

I          These  financral  results  have  been  prepared  in  accordance  wlth  the  recognition  and  mea5uremen`  prlr`ciples  laid  down  Ln  lndianAccounting  standard  (.lnd  AS').  34  `lnterim  Financial  8eporting.,  no`ified  undo/  section

133  Of the  Companies Act.  2013  read  wl`h  Companies  (Indian Ai:coun`ing Standards)  Rules,  2015, os  amended  from tine  to time,  and  other accountlng  principles  generally accepted  in  lndla

2         The  companyhasexerclsed  theoi)tlonunder  sec`ion  llsBAAofthe  Income  T@xAct,196l  wlth  effect from  financialyear  2019-20  relevant  (a  assessment  year  2020-21    Afterex®rcislng  the  op`ion  ofsec`ion  llsBAA,

the  toxable  Income  under the  provisions of Income  Tax  Act,1961  comes to  nil   Further,  after  adoption af Sectlon  115BAA,  the  Company  i5 outside  the  scope  and  applicabihty  of MAT  provision5  under  Section  11SJ8  of

Income Tax Act,1961

3         As  per  Gazette  notlflcatlon  No  S  0  529  (E)  datecl  Sth  February  2018,  as  amended  bv  notiflcatlon  no  S  a   146S  dated  2nd  April  2018  issued  by  Minlstrv  of Corporate  Affairs,  Government  of  India.  the  provislon5  of  lnd

AS  12  rela`ing to Deferred  Tax  A5set/Deferred  Tax  liability does  not apply  to the  Company w  e  f   lst Apn'12017,  accordingly,  no  provi5ion  has  been  made  for  Deferred  tax  liabrlities/I)eferred  lax  assets

4         The  company  has  completed  its  lnltl8l  publicofferlng  (lpo)ofl,78,20,69,Ocoequity  shares  offacevalue  o/Bs  lo/-eachal  an  Issue  prlce  of Rs  26/-perequitv5hare  ageregating  lo  Rs   46,333  80  millron5.  consisting  a(

fresh  Issue  1,18,80,46,000  equlty shares  agcreBatlng  to  fls   30,889  20  millions  and  an  Oflerfor sale  of 59AO,23,000  equity  shares  aggreBatLng  to  Rs.   15,444  60  millions   by  the  Government Of lndia.  The  equitv   shares

of the  ComDa ny were  listed on  BSE  Linited  and  Natronat Stock  Exchanfe of lndla  Llmlted  on  29th January  2021

The utlllsallon Of Ipa  Dio€eeds  ls sunmarl5ed  a5 belo`^/:PartlcuL@rs/Ob|ectsoftheIssue
Amount R3lsed Upto tlie eats Of Board Mee`iog

u'll'sed Unutlllsed

AUBment.ng our equLty  cap.tal  base  to  moot ou r future  caplta I 30118  76 30  118.76

General Corporate  Purpose 500 464  02 3598

Net flioceeds. 3o6ia.76 30 5€2.78 35.98
•  Net Ofls5ue  ex".n5e Of R5,  270 44  miHions  (Utilised  tlll  the  date Of board  mee`lno  Rs   270 44  mll]\on5\

S         Estimation  ofuncertaintyrelatlngtothe6lobaI  Heahh  pandemlccovID.19

The  outbreak  of  coronavlrus  (Covlo  -19)  pandemii:  globally  and  in  lndia  is  causing  disturbance  and  Slawdown  of economlc  activlty   The  Company  has  adopted  measures  to  curb  the  spread  af  mfectlon  ln  order  to

pro(ec`  the  heal`h  of 1`5 employees  and  ensure  busine5s  contlnulty wlth  mlnlmal dlsruptlon

The  Company  has  evaluated  the  Impact Of this  pandemic  on  Its  buslnes!  operations and  based  on  Its  feview and  c\.rrent  mdicatoTs of future  ecoi`omlc  condittons.  there  is  no  significant  Impact  on  its  fir\ancLal  results

However,  the  Impact  assessment  of covID-19  is  a  continuing  process 8iven  the  uncertaint/es assocbted  with  lts  nature  and  duratron  and  accordingly the  Impact  may  be  diffe/em from  `ha` estimated  as  at  the  date  ol

approval  of these financial  re5u I(i   The  Company will  conlinue  monltorlng  any  materlal changes  `o future  economic conditions

6                The  pre.lea5e  Income  onflnanclnB  ofRaltway  lnfrastnjcture  proiects  has  been  accounted  fora`the  averagecost  ofli`cremenlal  borrowing  plus  margin  on  the  funds  amoiii``ingto  Rs   40.356  SO  mllllons  trans(erred  `o

(a)             MOB  during  the  halfyearended  3o  sep  2022  (Quarterended  30June  2022.  Rs.  39,575,OO,  Halfvearended30Sep  2021    Rs   1,21,12S  20  millions,  Vearended  31  March  2022    Rs   3,10,987  60  million5),

(b)             ForcomputinB  the  Lease  Rental  in  respectof`he  rolling  stock  assets  acquired  and  lea5edtothe  Mlnis`ryofBailways  amountingto  fls   54.128  67  millions  during  the  quarter  ended  30Sep  2022(Quarter  ended  30  June
2022   R5   Nil,  Half Year ended  30  Sep  2021.  RS.  1,47,971,62  rnllllon,  year ended  31  March  2022   Rs   2,74.839  73  Million),  the  Lease  Rental  Rate  and  the  lnteTnal  Rate  of Beturn  have  been  worked  out with  re/erence  to

the  average  cost of mcremenlal  borrowings  made  during the year plus the  mangln.

7          Pursuant  to  Regulation  54  Of  sEBl  (Listing  obllgations  and  Dlsctosure  flequirements)  Regulation,  201S,  forall  the  secured  listed  non{onvertible  debt  securities  and  olher  secured  borrowings  Issued  bythe  company

and  outstandlng  as  on  3oth  September  2022,10co6  secu rity cover  has  been  maintained  by way  af charge  on  present  and  future  rolling  stock as5els and/or  lease  receivable  of the  company.  Accordlngly,  the  company

is  malntainlng  as  asset  cover of  lx  times  as  on  30th  September  2022  in respect  Of secured  non<onvertlble  debt  securities  Issued  and  other  secured  borrowings  of the  Company.  The  security cover  in  the  prescribed

format  has  been annexed  as  Annexure-A.

8          The  additronal  Ln/orma`ion  as  reciulred  underRe8ula`Ion  52(4)ofsEBI  (ustlngobllgatlonsand  DLsclosure  Requ[rements)  Regulatlons,  2015  Is  annexed  asAnnexure-8.

9         The  companv's  maln  business  is  to  pro\//de  leaslng  and  financingto  Railway  sectorin  lndla   As  such,there  are  nosepara`e  reportable  busines5seBments  wlthinthe  mea"ng  oflndian  Accoun`ing  standard  |lnd  AS  IO8
'Operatin8  Se8men`5  ')

10       The  di5closure  ln  respectofrelated  partylransactlons  lorthe  halfvearperTod  ended  30thseptember2022  has  been  annexed  as  Anneiure{

11        Tbe  above  financial  results  were  reviewed  bv the  Audit  Committee  and  approved  and  taken  on  record  by the  Board  Of  Directors  al  their  respective  meeting  held  on  loth  November  2022   These  have  been  subiected

to  IImited  revlew  bv  the  statutory ®udltorg Of the Company

12       The  figures  for  the  quarter ended  30th  September  2022  and  30th  September  2o21  have  been  derlved  by deducting  the  yearto  date  unaudiled  figures  for  the  period  ended  30`h  /une  2022  and  3oth  June  2021  from

the  year to  date  unaudlted  flgure5  for the  pe/Iod  ended  30th  September 2022 and  30th  Septembe/  2021,  /e§pectlvely

13       The  8alance  Sheet,  S`a(ement of Profit or loss,  Statemon` Of Change  in Equ/tv  (SOCIE), Statement of cast`  Flow  and  5ummarized  notes  to accour`ts,  lncludlnB sl8nifLcant  accountmB  policies  for the  perlod  ended  30th

September  2022  have  been  anncxed  as  Annexure-D

IAvestoicomDlalntsTherewasno(nve¢tor {omolalnt oendln® at the be.lnnln? ag well .a end a( th. niiarlpi ended goth Set.tember ZoZ2
EOutw Bond

ra\Total  bondholders  comDla Into  DendinE  at the  beamninE NIL NIL

rb)Total  Bondholders  comnla rots  rece.ved  through  cor.esnondence 83 7Z1

/c`Total  Comi}Iaints  recelved  from  SEBI  durlna  the  Derlod 3 2

(dtTotal com Dfamts  resoived  /  replied  durinp the  aer/od 86 `:\

lelTotal  bond holders comolaints  nendina N'L NIL

Previou5  penods figures  have  been  regrouped/rearranged  wherever considered  necessary. ffl(Shellyverma)eclor(Finance)+New  Delhi

loth  Noven`ber2022                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     CMD(Addnl   charge)  and  Di



KBDS & C'0.
clLARTERED AccoiNI4uns

GJi.4, Fin Hoor: SEctor-16, Rohini

(Oppoine Jin BhinModel school)
Mobfle:-9l-93l!!T1440,+91.

95550TltloThone:-9l-ll-:T38:5

Emafl: kbdsandco@ gmall`con

INDEPENDENT    AUDITOR'S    LIMITED    REVIEW    REPORT    ON    UNAUDITED
STANDALONE  FINANCIAL  RESULTS  FOR  THE  QUARTER  AND  IIALF  YEAR
ENDED 30" SEPTHMBNER 2022

The Board of Directors,
Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited,
Room  No.1316-1339,  3rd  Floor,

The Ashok,  Diplomatic Enclave,

50-a, Chanakyapuri,  New Delhi  110021

I.    We have reviewed the accompanying statement of un-audited financial results of lndian
Railway  Finance  Corporation  Limited  ("the  company)  for the  quarter and  half year
ended   30th   Sept,  2022   together  with  the  notes  thereon  ("the   statement"),   being
submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of regulation 33  &  52 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended
("the Listing Regulations").

2.    This statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's management and approved
by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on  loth Nov, 2022, has been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian
Acco\ming  Standz+rd  34  .Clnterim  Financial  Reporting"   ("Ind  AS  34 "),  prescrtoed
under   section   133   of  the   Companies  Act,   2013   read   with  relevant  rules   issued
thereunder   and   other   accounting   principles    generally    accepted   in   India.    Our
responsibility is to issue a report on the financial statement based on our review.

3.   We  conducted  our review  in  accordance  with  the  Standard  on  Review  Engagement
(SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent
Auditor of the Entity ` ' , issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This
standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as
to  whether  the  financial  statements  are  free  of material  misstatement.  A  review  is
limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied
to financial data and thus provide less assurance than an audit. We have not performed
an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

4.   Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results, prepared
in  accordance  with  the  recognition  and  measurement  principles  laid  down  in  the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards  specified under Section 133 of companies Act

33   as  amended  read  with  relevant  rules  issued  thereunder  and  other  accounting
inciples generally accepted in India , has not disclosed the information required to be
sclosed in terms of clause 52 of the Listing regulations including the manner in which
is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement or that it has been
epared in accordance with relevant prudential norms issued by the Reserve Bank of



India  in  respect  of income  recognition,  asset  classification,  provisioning  and  other
related matters to the extent applicable.

5.    The Company has made provision of CSR expenses on prorate basis for the half year
ending September 30, 2022.

Our conclusion on the Statement is not modifled in respect of above matter.

For KBDS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Fimi Registration No: 323288E

thwith
(CA Dashrath Kumar Singh)
Partner
Membership No:096587
UDIN:  22060030BCSLN

Place: Delhi
Date:  10.11.2022
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Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited
CIN  L65910D L1986G01026363

Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2022

(All  amounts  in  millions  of  INR,  unless stated  otherwise)

As at                                       As at

30 September 2022         30 September z021

Asat

31  March  Z022

ASSETS

Financial Assets

Cash  And  Cash  Equivalents

Bank  Balance  Other Than  Cash  and  Cash  Equivalents

Derivative  Financial  Instruments

Receivables

•  Lease  Receivables

Loans

Investments

other  Financial  Assets

Total  Financial Assets

Non-financla I assets

Current Tax Assets  (Net)

Property,  Plant And  Equipment

Bight of use Assets

Other  Intangible Assets

other  Non-Financial  Assets

Total  Non-Flnanclal Assets

Total Assets

ilABiLITIEs  AND  EQurTy

iiABILrTiES

I:inancia I  lla bilities

Derivative  Financial  Instruments

Payables
-Trade  payables

(i) Total  outstanding dues of micro  enterprises  and  small  enterprises

(ii) Total  outstanding dues of creditors other than  micro enterprises
and  small  enterprises

• Other  payables

(I) Total  outstanding  dues of micro enterprises and  small  enterprises

(ii) Total  outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and  small  enterprises

Debt Securities

Borrowings  (Other Than  Debt Securities)

Lease  Llabillties

other  Financial  Liabilities

Total  financial  uabilitles

Non-Financial  Liabilities

Current Tax  liabllitles (Net)

Provisions

Deferred Tax  Liabilities (Net)

Other  Non-Financial  Llabilities

Total  Non-Financial  Liabilities

Total  Lia bllities

Equity

Equity Share Capital

other  Eciuity

Total  Equity

Total  Liabilities And  Equity

Signlflcant Accounting Policies

The accompanying statement of significant ace

87,227.84

9,556.43

5,060.29

21,97,295.71

59,331.26

96.38

21,66,004.16

20,709.00

762.48

936.30

17,39,842.85

68,248.05

117.69

21,37,176.34

1,464.92

1,568.84

2,023.25

20,06,924.99

68,248.05

100.03

22,47,779  18

45,24,572.07                           39,67,792.71                                43,28,log.Z6

6,277.49

133.54

164.52

15.98

9,307.70

111.98

283,98

11.34

6,373.08

138.86

224.25

16.51

1,20,814.25                                 1,09,166  59                                      1,64,940.28

1,27,405.78 1,18,881.59                                    1,71,692.98

46.51.977.85                           40,86,674.30                               44,99,80Z.24

11,200.26

1.94

220.86

19,80,192.30

18,86,966.50

174.78

3,31,364.73

3,809.62

2.01

250.82

19,37,091.49

14,89,884.63

290.53

2,21,293.06

5,669.33

10.02

235.69

19,41,749.53

19,42,416.65

233.52

1,94,251.96

42,10,121.37 36,52,622.16                               40,84,566.70

5,536.19                                     44,589.33

535.71

4,736.43

6,365.57 44,880.90                                         5,272.14

4Z,16,486.94 36,97,503.06                               40,89,838.84

21                                      1,30, 685.06                                 1,30, 685.06

3,04, 805.85                               2,58,486.18

1,30,685.06

2,79,278.34

4,35,490.91 3,89,171. Z4                                    4,09,963.40

674.30                              44

1&Z

and  notes to the financial information  are an integral part of this



Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited

CI N  L65910Dl.1986G01026363

Statement of Profit and  Loss for the Half Year ended 30 September Z022

(All  amounts  ln  milllons of lNR,  unless stated  otherwise)

Particulars                                                                                                                                                               Notes
Half Year Ended                   Half Year Ended                       Year Ended

30 September 2022          30 September 2021              31  March  2022
Revenue  From Operations

Interest Income

Lease  Income

Dlvldend  Income

Other  Income

Total  Income

Expenses

Finance Costs

lmpairment on  Financial  Instruments

Employee  Benefit  Expense

Depreciation,  Amortization  and  lmpairment

Other  Experises

Tota I  Expenses

Profit  Before  Exceptional Items and Tax

Exceptional  ltems

Profit  Before Tax

Tax Expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Adjustment for  Earlier Years

Total Tax Expenses

Profit for the  Period from Contlnulng Operations
Profit from  Discontinued  Operations

Tax  Expense  of  Discontinued  Operations

Profit from  Discontinued  operations  (After Tax)

Profit for the  Period

Other Comprehensive  Income

(A)  (I)  Items that will  not  be  reclassified  to  proflt  or  loss
-Remeasurement of defined  benefit plans

-Remeasuremer`t of Eciuity  Instrument

(ii)  Income tax  relating to items that wHl  not  be  reclassified to  profit or  loss
-Remeasurement of defined  beneflt  plans

•  Remeasurement of Equity Instrument

Subtotal (A)

(a)  (i)  Items that will  be  reclassified  to  profit or loss

(ii)  Income tax  relating to items that wlll  be  reclasslfled to  profit  or  loss

Subtotal (a)

Other Comprehensive  Income (A + 8)

Total  comprehensive  Income  for the  pei.lod  (comprising  profit  (loss)  and  other

comprehensive income for the period)

Earnings per equity share (for contlnulng operations)

Basic  (Rs.)

Diluted  (Rs.)

Earnings pet equity share (for dlscontlnued operations)

Baslc  (Rs.)

Diluted  (Bs,)

Earnings per equity share (for continuing and discontinued operations)                                 32

Basic  (Rs.)

Diluted  (Rs.)

Signlflcant Accounti ng Policies

The accompanying statement of si antBttfflnt'

34,224.01                                  33,117.46                                 72,946.72

80,148.38                                  59,595.91                            1,30,035.96

1,14,372.39                                92,713.37                          2,02,982.68

2.46                                                9.96

6.20                                                0.62                                            23.33

1,14,378.59                                92,716.45                           2,03,015.97

79,981.78                                 62, 306. 22                            1,40,747.82

(41.19)

64.37

70.12

544.91

(8.76)                                                  4.61

39.66                                         107.48

62.06                                         140.25

282.95                                     1,114.26

80,619.99                                62,682.13                           1,42,114.42

33,758.60                               30,034.32                              60,901. 55

33,758.60                               30,034.32                              60,901.55

33,758.60                               30,034.32                              60,898.36

33,758.60                               30,034.32                             60,898.36

2.80

(0.73)

5.61

(10.61)

2.07                                               3.10                                           ( 5.00)

33,760.67                               30,037.42                              60,893.36



Indian Railway Finance Corporation LJmited
clN  i659ioDii9acG01026363
Statement of cash flow for the Half Year ended 30 September 2022

(All  amour\ts  in  millions of  INR,  unless stated  otherwlse)

30 September 202Z 30 September 2021                   31 March 202Z

A.    CASH  FLOW FROM  OPERATING  ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxes

Adlustments for:

Remeasurement  of Defined  Benefit  Plans

Depreclatlon  and  Amorti5atlon  (.ncludlng adjustment to  ROU  assets)

Provlsion  of Interest on  Income Tax

Loss  on  Sale  of Fixed  Assets

Profit  on  Sale  Of Fixed  A5sets

Discount  of Commercial  Paper

Adiustmerits Towards  Effective  I nterest  F(ate

Interest  Expense  on  lease  'iabllltles

Dlvldend  Income  Received

Share  lssile  Expenses

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes

Movements in Working Capltal :

Increase/( Decrease)  in  Payables

increase/(Decrease)  in  Provisions

increase/(Decrease)  In  Others  Nan  Financia!  llabilities

Increase/(Decrease)  In  Other  Fmancial  llabilitie5

Decrease/( Increase)  iri  Receivables

Decrease/(Increase)  in  Loans  and Advances

Decrease/(Increase)  in  Bank  Balance  Other Than  Cash  and  Cash  Equivalents

Decrease/(Increase)  in  Cnrier  Non  Financial  Assets

Decrease/(Increase)  in  CIther  Financial  Assets

Cash Generated From Operations
Less:  Direct Taxes  Paid  (Net  of Refunds)

Net Cash Flow/( used) in Operatlng ActMtles (A)

a.    CASH  FLOWS  FROM  INVESTING  AC"VITIES

Purchase of Property  Plant  &  Equlpments  and  Intangible Assets

Proceeds  From  Sale  of Property Plant &  Equipment

Proceeds from  Reallzatlon  of Pass Through Certificates / Sale of lnvestments

DMdend  Income  F`ecelved

Net Cash Flow/(used) in Investing ActMtles   (a)

C.    CASH  FLOWS  FROM  FINANCING  ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from  ls5iie of  Eqilltv  Share  Capital

Proceeds from security Premium

15sue  of Debt Securities  (Net  of Redemptlons)

f`aising of Rupee  Term  Loans/  Foreign  Currency Borrowings  (Net  of Repayments)

Issue  of Commercial  Paper  (Net  of Repayments)

Payments for  lease  liab.I.tles  (including interest)

Share  Issue  Expenses

Flnal  Dlvldend  Paid

Interim  Dividend  Paid

Net Cash Generated  By/(Used I n) Flnancing Activities (C)

Net Increase in Cash cnd Cash  Equlvalents (A+8+C)

Cash  and  Cash  Equivalents  at the  beglnnirlg of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period

Components Of cash and cash equivalents

Cash  on  hand

Balances with  banks
•on  current  accourits

-Balance  in RBl-PIA

Cheques  in  hand

Slgnlficant Accounting Policies

33,758.60                                    30,034.32

2 80                                                0.54

70.12                                             62 06

003

246.14

498.90                                             398. 26

5  77                                                   9.05

(2.46)

60,901  55

S.6|

140  25

0.03

324  49

797.98

16.48

(9.96)

(1.03)

34,336.19

(22  91)

293.67

799.76

1,28,879.61

(1,90,370.72)

8,916.79

(7,987,59)

44,126 03

81,014.54

30,747.94

(254.78)

0.35

30,789.73

49,562.08

(84,152.94)

1,4SO.10

854.85

(40,545.98)

(1,6S,880,62)

62,175.40

(261.90)

244 49

(9,063.17)

(1,777.07)

(3,51,23S.08)

1,4SO.10

4849

(96,350.29)

(2,52,31139)

99,985.37                              (1,77,429.27)                               (6,47,080.42)

(9S.59)                                                     4.45 (2,957.60)

I,00.080.96                              (1,77,433.72} (6,44,122.82)

(15.85)

003

4.69

246

(8.67)                                                  (47.19)

38,362.45                                 1,40, 322.33

(52,614.36)                                      44,216.31
10,705 24

(64.51)                                                 (64`40)

1,84,834 63

4,97,314  74

(29,294.76)

(128.84)

(10,062.75)

(14,316.42) 1,95,179.48                                    6,42,663.02

85,762.92                                    17,737.09                                         ( 1,506.99)

1,464  92                                        2,97191

87,227.84                                  20,709.co

orM Z2J I 4

0.10

20,708.90                                           1,464 82

010                                                  010

The accompanying statement of significant accountiiig policies and  notes to the  financial  Information are an integral  part of this statement,
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IRFC SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited
CIN  u65910D11986G01026363
Statement of significant accounting policies

1.     Background

Indian  Railway  Finance Cctrporation  Ltd.,  referred to as '`the Company"  or "lRFC" was  incorporated  by

the Government of India,  Ministry of Railways,  as a financing arm  of Indian  Railways,  for the  purpose

of  raising  the  necessary  resources  for  meet'ing  the  developmental   needs  of  Indian   Railways.  The

Company's principal  business  is to  borrow funds from the financial  markets to finance the acquisition

/  creation  of  assets  which  are  then   leased  out  to  the  Indian   Railways  as  finance  lease.   IRFC  is  a

Schedule  `A'  Public  Sector  Enterprise  under  the  administrative  control  of  the  Ministry  of  Ra'ilways,

Govt.   of   India.   It   is   also   registered   as   Systemically   Important   Nan-Deposit   taking   Nan   Banking

Financial   Company   (NBFC  -  ND-Sl)   and   Infrastructure   Finance   Company  (NBFC-   lFC)  with   Reserve

Bank  of  India  (RBl).The  President  of  India  along  with  his  nominees  holds  86.36%  of  the  equity  share

capital.

The  registered  address and  principal  place of business of the Company is  Room  Nos.1316 -1349,  3rd

Floor,  Hotel The Ashok  Diplomatic  Enclave,  50-8,  Chanakyapuri  New  Delhi  -110021.

2.     Significant Accounting policies

A   summary   of   the   significant   accounting   policies   adopted   in   the   preparation   of   the   financial

statements   are   as  given   below.   These   accounting   policies   have   been   applied   consistently  to   all

periods presented in the financial statements.

2.1   Statement of compliance

The  financial  statements  have  been  prepared  on  going  concern   basis  following  accrual  system  of
accounting   in   accordance   with   the   Indian   Accounting   Standards   (`lnd   AS')   notified   under   the

Companies  (Indian  Accounting  Standards)  Rules  2015  and  subsequent  amendments  thereto,   read
with  Section  133  of the  Companies  Act,  2013  and  other Accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in

India.

2.2   Basis for preparation of financial statements

The  financial  statements  have  been  prepared  on  the  historical  cost  basis  except for  certain financial
instruments that are  measured  at fair values  at the  end  of each  reporting  period,  as  explained  in the
accounting policies below.  Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are stated  in  Millions of Rupees.

Historical  cost  is  the  amount  of  cash  or  cash  equivalents  paid  or  the  fair value  of the  consideration

given  to  acquire  assets  at  the  time  of  their  acquisition  or  the   amount   of  proceeds   received   in
exchange  for  the  obligation,  or  at  the  amounts  of cash  or  cash  equivalents  expected  to  be  paid  to
satisfy the liability in the normal course of business.



IRFC SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value is the  price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a  liability in an orderly

transaction between  market participants at the measurement date,  regardless of whether that price
is  directly  observable  or  estimated  using  another  valuation  technique.  Fair  value  for  measurement
and/or  disclosure   purpose   in  these  financial   statements   is  determined  on   such   basis  except  for,
leasing  transactions  that  are  within  the  scope  of  lnd  AS  17,  and  measurements  that  have  some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value.

In  addition, for financial  reporting  purposes fair value  measurements  are  categorized  Into  Level  1,  2

or 3  based on the degree to which the inputs for the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance  of  the  inputs  to  the  fair  value   measurements   in   its  entirety,  which   are  described  as
follows:

•Level  1  -Inputs are  quoted  prices  (unadjusted)  in  active  markets for identical  assets  or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;

•Level  2  -Inputs  are  inputs,  other than  quoted  prices  included  within  level  1,  that  are  observable for

the  asset or liability,  either directly or indirectly;  and

•Level 3-inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liab.ility.

2.3   Use of estimates

The  preparation  of  financial  statements  requires  management  to  make  Judgments,  estimates  and
assumptions that may impact the appl.ication  of accounting  policies and the  reported value  of assets,
liabilities,   income,   expenses   and   related   disclosures   concerning   the   items   involved   as   well   as

contingent   assets   and   liabilities   at   the   balance   sheet   date.   The   estimates   and   management`s

Judgments  are  basecl  on  previous  experience  &  other factors  considered  reasonable  and  prudent  in
the c`ircumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates  and  underlying  assumptions  are  reviewed  on  an  ongoing  basis.  Revisions  to  accounting

estimates  are  recognized  in  the  period  in  which  the  estimates  are  revised  and  in  any future  periods
affected.

In  order to enhance  understanding of the financial statements,  .Information  about significant areas of
estimation,   uncertainty  and  critical  judgments  in  applying  accounting  policies  that  have  the  most

significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements  is as under:

a)     Formulation of accounting policies
The   account.ing   policies   are   formulated   in   a   manner   that   results   in   financial   statements

containing relevant and  reliable information about the transactions,  other events and conditions
to  which  they  apply.  Those  policies  need  not  be  applied  when  the  effect  of  applying  them  is
immaterial.

b)    Post-employment benefit plans
Employee  benefit  obligations  are  measured  on the  basis  of actuarial  assumptions  which  include

mortality   and   withdrawal   rates   as   well   as   assumptions   concerning  future   developments   in
discount  rates,  the  rate  of salary  increases  and  the  inflation  rate.  The  Company  considers  that
the  assumptions  used  to  measure  its  obligations  are  appropriate  and  documented.  However,
any changes in these assumptions may have a material  impact on the

c)     Provisions and contingencies

calculations.

•:.:::TIT.`,```.



IRFC SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The  assessments  undertaken  in  recognizing provisions   and   contingencies   have   been   made   in
accordance      with      lnd   AS   37   `Provisions,   contingent   liabilities   and   contingent   assets'.   The

evaluation    of   the    likelihood   of   the    contingent   events    has    required    best   judgment    by
management   regarding  the   probability  of  exposure  to   potential   loss.   Should   circumstances

change following un foreseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

d)    lncometaxes
Significant   estimates   are   involved   in   determining   the   provision   for   income   taxes,   including

amount expected to be paid/ recovered for uncertain tax positions.

2.4   Revenue

Company's  revenues  arise  from  lease  income,  dividend  income,  interest  on  lease  advance,   loans,

deposits and investments.  Revenue from other income comprise miscellaneous income etc.

Rental   income  from   operating   lease   .is   recognised   on   a   straight-line   basis   over  the   term   of  the
relevant   lease.   Finance   lease   income   in   respect  of  finance   leases   is   allocated  to  the   accounting

periods  so  as  to  reflect  a  constant  periodic  rate  of  return  on  the  net  Investment  outstanding  in
respect of the lease. (Also see accounting pol.Icy on leases at 2.14).

Interest  income  from  financial  assets  is  recognised  when  it  is  probable  that  the  economic  benefits

will  flow  to  the  Company  and  the  amount  of  .Income  can  be  measured  reliably.  Interest  income  is
accrued  on  a  time  basis,  by  reference  to the  principal  outstand`ing  and  at the  effective  interest  rate
applicable,   which   is  the   rate  that  exactly  discounts  estimated  future   cash   receipts  through  the
expected  life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Pre-commencement lease-interest income is determined  based on the MOU entered with  Ministry of
Railways  and   when   it  is   probable  that  the  economic  benefits  will  flow  to  the  Company  and  the
amount can  be determined  reliably.

Dividend   income   is   recognized   in   profit   or   loss   only   when   the   right   to   receive   the   payment   ls

established,  it  is  probable  that  the  economic  benefits  associated  with  the  dividend  will  flow  to  the
Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured  reliably.

2.5   Foreign currency Transaction

Functional and presentation curreney

Items  included   in  the  financial  statements  of  ent.ity  are  measured   us'ing  currency  of  the  primary

economic   environment   in   which   the   entity   operates   (`the   functional   currency').   The   financial

statements   are   presented   in   Indian   rupee   (lNR),   which   is   entity's   functional   and   presentation

currency.

Transactions and Balances

Transactions  in  foreign  currencies  are  initially  recorded  at  their  respective  functional  currency  spot

rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
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Monetary  assets  and  liabilities  denominated  in  foreign  currencies  are  translated  at  the  functional

currency spot rates of exchange at the  reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Nan-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated

using  the  exchange  rates  at  the  dates  of the  initial  transactions.  Non-monetary  items  measured  at

fair  value  in  a  foreign  currency  are  translated  using  the  exchange  rates  at  the  date  when  the  fair

value  .is  determined.  The  gain  or  loss  arising  on  translation  of  non-monetary  items  measui.ed  at fair

value is treated in  line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item.

2.6   Employee Benefits

Defined contribution plan

A  Defined  contr.ibution  plan  is  a  post-employment  benefit  plan  under which the  company  pays fixed

contribut.Ions    in    respect   of   the    employees   into   an    independent   fund    administrated    by   the

government/  pension  fund  manager and  will  have  no  legal  or  constructive  obligation  to  pay further
amounts   after   its   payment   of  the   fixed   contribution.   Obligations   for   contr.ibutions   to   defined

contribution  plans  are  recognized  as  an  employee  benefit expense  in  statement  of prof`it  and  loss  in

the period during which services are rendered  by employees.

The  company  has  a  defined  contribution  plan  which  includes  pension  scheme  and  provident  fund

scheme.   Company's   contribution  towards   provident  fund   and   pens.Ion   scheme  for  the  year  are

recognised as an expense and charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Defilned benef it plan

A defined  benefit plan  is a  post-employment benefit plan other than a  defined contribution  plan.  The

company's  liability towards gratuity and  post-retirement  benefits  such  as  medical  benefits  are  in  the

nature of defined benefits  plans.

The  company's  net  obligation  in  respect  of defined  benef'it  plans  is  determined  using the  projected

unit   credit   methcid,   with   actuarial   valuations   being   carried   out   at   the   end   of   reporting   period.

Actuarial  gain/loss  on  re-measurement  of  gratuity  and  other  post-employment  defined  plans  are

recognised  in  other comprehensive  income  (Ocl).  Past service  cost  is  recognised  in  the statement of

Profit and  Loss account in the period of a  plan amendment.

other long-term employee benefits

The  company's  obligation  towards  leave encashment and  employee family benefit scheme are  in the

nature of other long term  employee benefits.  Liability in  respect of compensated  absences  becoming

due  or expected to  be  availed  more than  one year after the  balance  sheet date  and  employee family

benefit  scheme  are  estimated  on  the  basis  of  an  actuarial  valuation  performed  by  an  independent

actuary using the projected  unit credit method.

Actuarial  gains  and   losses  arising  from   past  exper.ience  and  changes  injftuarial   assumptions  are

chargedto-statementofprofitanLlossintheperiodinwhichsuchg;giv€®FiEas` re determine

Ls,NODTiTfro
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Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits such as salaries and wages are recognised on  undiscountecl basis in the

statement  of  Profit  and  Loss  account,  on  the  basis  of  the  amount  paid  or  payable  for  the  period

during which services are rendered  by the employee.

2.7   Taxation

Tax expense comprises Current Tax and  Deferred Tax.

Current Tax

The  tax  currently  payable  is  based  on  taxable  profit  for  the  year.  Taxable  profit  differs  from  'profit

before  tax'  as  reported  in  the  Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss  because  of  items  of  income  or  expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years and  items that are never taxable or deductible.

The  Company's  current  tax  is  calculated   using  tax  rates  that  have  been  enacted   or  substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current  tax  is  recognised  in  profit  or  loss,  except  when  they  relate  to  items  that  are  recognised  in

other comprehensive  income  or directly in  equity,  in which  case, the current tax is  also  recognised  in

other comprehens.ive income or directly in equity respectively.

The Company is exercising the irrevocable option as  permitted by section  115BAA of the Income -tax

Act,   1961   whereby   by   foregoing   certain   exemptions,   deductions   and   allowances,   the   tax   rate

applicable  to  the  Company  .is   lower  than  the   normal  tax  rate  that  would   have   been   otherwise

applicable  to  the  Company.  Henceforth,  minimum  alternate  tax  provisions  of  section  115JB  of  the

Income -tax Act,1961 are not applicable to the Company.

Deferred Tax

Deferred  tax   is   recognized   using  the  balance  sheet  method,   providing  for  temporary  differences

between   the   carry'ing   amounts   of  assets   and   liabilities   for  financial   reporting   purposes   and   the

amounts  used for taxation  purposes.  Deferred tax is measured  at the tax rates that are  expected to

be applied to temporary d.ifferences when they reverse,  based on the  laws that have  been  enacted  or

substantively  enacted  by the  reporting date.  Deferred  tax  assets  and  liabilities  are  offset  if there  is a

legally  enforceable  right  to  offset  current  tax  liabilities  and  assets,  and  they  relate  to  income  taxes

levied by the same tax authority.

A  deferred  tax  asset  is  recognized  to the  extent that  it  is  probable  that future  taxable  profits  will  be

available  aga.inst which the temporary difference can  be  utilized.  Deferred tax assets  are  reviewed  at

each  reporting  date  and  are  reduced  to the  extent that  it  is  no  longer  probable that  the  related  tax

benefit will  be  real.ized.

The  Company  does  not  recognize  deferred  tax  asset  or deferred  tax  liability  because  as  per  Gazette

Notification  no. S.O.  529(E) dated 5th February 2018 as amended by 1465 dated  2
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April    2018    issued    by    Ministry    of   Corporate   Affairs,    Government    of    India,    read    with    their

communication  no.  Eoffice F.No.17/32/2017 -CL-V dated 20th March  2020,   the provisions of Indian

Accounting  Standards  12  relating  to  Deferred  Tax  Assets  (DTA)  or  Deferred  Tax  Liability  (DTL)  does

not apply to the Company.

2.8   Property, plant and Equipment (PPE)

An  item  of  property,  plant  and  equipment  is  recognized  as  an  asset  if and  only  if  it  is  probable that

future  economic  benefits associated with the  item  will  flow to the Company and the  cost of the item

can be measured  reliably.

Items  of property,  plant  and  equipment  are  initially  recognized  at  cost.  Subsequent  measurement  is

done  at  cost  less  accumulated  depreciation/amortization  and  accumulated  impairment  lasses.  Cost

includes  expenditure  that  is  directly  attributable to  bringing  the  asset  to  the  location  and  condition

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

When   parts   of  an   item   of  property,   plant  and  equipment  have   d.ifferent   useful   lives,   they   are

recognized separately.

Subsequent  expenditure  is  recognized  as  an  increase  in  the  carrying  amount  of the  asset  when  it  is

probable  that  future  economic  benefits  deriving  from  the  cost  incurred  will  flow  to  the  enterprise
and the cost of the item can  be measured  reliably.

De-recognition

Property,  plant and  equipment is derecognized  when  no future economic benefits  are expected from

their use or upon their disposal.  Gains and  losses on  de-recognition of an item  of property,  plant and

equipment  are   detei.mined   by   comparing  the   proceeds   from   disposal,   if  any,   with   the   carrying

amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation on  property, plant and  equipment has  been  provided on the straight-line  method  as per

the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

2.9   Intangible assets

An   intangible  asset  is   recognized   if  and  only  if  it  is  probable  that  the  expected  future  economic

benefits that are  attributable to the  asset will flow to the  Company  and  the  cost  of the  asset  can  be

measured  reliably.

Intangible  assets that are  acquired  by the  Company,  which  have finite  useful  lives,  are  recognized  at

cost.  Subsequent  measurement  is  done  at  cost  less  accumulated amortization   and   accumulated
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impairment  losses.  Cost includes  any directly attributable  incidental  expenses  necessary to  make the

assets ready for its 'intended use.

Subsequent  expend'iture  is  recognized  as  an  increase  in  the  carrying  amount  of the  asset  when  it  is

probable  that  future  economic  benefits  deriving  from  the  cost  incurred  will  flow  to  the  enterprise
and the cost of the item can  be measured  reliably.

De-recognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or

upon their disposal.  Gains  &  losses  on  de-recognition  of an  item  of intangible  assets  are  determined

by  comparing  the  proceeds  from  d'isposal,  if  any,  with  the  carrying  amount  of  intangible  assets  and

are recognized 'in the statement of profit and  loss.

Amortization

Software is amortized over 5 years on straight-line method.

2.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing   costs   consist   of  interest   expense    calculated    using    the    effective    interest    method

as     described     in     lnd  AS  109  `Financial  lnstruments'  and  exchange  differences  arising from  foreign

currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing   costs   that   are   directly   attributable   to   the   acquisition,   construction/development   or

erection  of qualifying assets are capitalized  as part of cost of such  asset until  such time the assets are

substantially   ready   for   their   intended   use.   Qualifying   assets   are   assets   which   necessarily   take

substantial period of time to get ready for the`ir intended  use or sale.

When  the  Company  borrows  funds  specifically  for  the  purpose  of  obtaining  a  qualifying  asset,  the

borrowing  costs  incurred  are capitalized. When  Company  borrows funds generally and  uses them for

the  purpose  of  obtaining  a  qualifying  asset,  the  capitalization  of  the  borrowing  costs  is  computed

based on the weighted  average cost of all  borrowing that are outstanding during the period  and used

for the acquisition, construction/exploration or erection  of the qualifying asset.

Income   earned   on  temporary   investment   of  the   borrowings   pending  their  expenditure   on   the

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Capitalization of borrowing costs  ceases when substantially all the activities  necessary to  prepare the

qualifying assets for their intended  uses are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognized as an  expense in the year in which they are incurred.

2.llCash and cash equivalents
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Cash  and cash  equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash  at banks,  cash on  hand  and short-term

deposits with an original  maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an  insignificant risk of

changes  in value.

2.12 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A   provision   is   recognized   if,   as   a   result   of   a   past   event,   the   Company   has   a   present   legal   or

constructive obligation that can  be estimated  reliably,  and .it  is  probable that an  outflow of economic

benefits will  be  required to settle the obligation.  If the  effect of the time value of money is  material,

provisions  are  determined   by  discounting  the  expected  future  cash  flows  at  a   pre-tax  rate  that
reflects  current market  assessments of the time value of money and  the  risks specific to the  liability.

When  discount'ing  is  used, the  increase  in the  provision  due to the  passage of time  is  recognized  as a

finance  costs.

The  amount recognized as a  provision  is the  best estimate of the considerat.Ion  required to settle the

present obligation  at  reporting date, taking into  account the  risks  and  uncertainties  surrounding the

obligation.

When   some   or  all   of  the   economic   benefits   required  to  settle   a   provision   are   expected  to   be

recovered  from  a  third  party,     the  receivable  is  recognized  as  an  asset  if  it  is  virtually  certain  that

reimbursement  will   be  received  and  the  amount  of  the  receivable  can  be  measured  reliably.  The

expense   relating   to   a   provis.Ion   is   presented   in   the   statement   of   profit   and   loss   net   of   any

reimbursement.

Contingent  liabilities  are  possible  obligations  that  arise  from  past  events  and  whose  existence  will

only  be  confirmed  by  the  occuri.ence  or  nan-occurrence  of  one  or  more  future  events  not  wholly

within the  control  of the  Company.  Where      it  is not  probable that  an  outflow  of economic  benefits

will   be   required,   or  the   amount   cannot   be   estimated   rel'iably,   the   obligation   is   disclosed   as   a

contingent  liability,   unless  the  probability  of  outflow  of  economic  benefits  is  remote.   Contingent

liabilit'ies  are disclosed  on the  basis of judgment of the  management/independent experts. These are

reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent   assets   are   possible   assets  that  arise   from   past   events   and   whose   existence   will   be

confirmed  only  by  the  occurrence  or  nan-occurrence  of  one  or  more  uncertain  future  events  not

wholly within the control of the Company.  Contingent assets are disclosed  in the financial  statements

when  inflow  of  economic  benefits  is  probable  on  the  basis  of judgment  of  management.  These  are

assessed   continually   to   ensure   that   developments   are   appropriately   reflected   in   the   financial

statements.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

The  carrying  amounts  of the  Company's  non-financial  assets  are  reviewed  at  each  reporting  date  to

determine  whether  there  is  any  indication  of  impairment  considering  the  provisions  of  lnd  AS  36
'lmpairment   of   Assets'.    If   any   such   indication   exists,   then   the   asset's

estimated.

ble   amount   is



IRFC SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The  recoverable  amount of an  asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to

disposal and  its value in  use.  In assessing value in  use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted

to their  present  value  using  a  pre-tax  discount  rate  that  reflects  current  market  assessments  of the

time value of money and the  risks specific to the  asset.  For the purpose of impairment testing,  assets

that  cannot   be   tested   individually   are   grouped   together   into   the   smallest  group   of  assets  that

generates cash  inflows from  continuing use that are  largely  independent of the cash  inflows  of other
assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit", or "CGU").

An  impairment  loss  is  recognized  if the  carrying amount of an  asset or  its CGU  exceeds  its  estimated

recoverable amount.  Impairment lasses are recognized in  profit or loss.  Impairment losses recognized

in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGu.

Impairment  losses  recognized  .in  prior periods are assessed  at each  reporting date for any indications

that the  loss  has  decreased  or  no  longer  exists.  An  impairment  loss  is  reversed  if there  has  been  a

change  in  the  estimates  used  to  determine the  I.ecoverable  amount.  An  impairment  loss  is  reversed

only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would

have   been   determ.ined,   net   of   depreciation   or   amortization,   if   no   impairment   loss   had   been

recognized.

2.14Leases

At  inception  of a  contract,  the  Company  assesses  whether the  contract  is,  or  contains  a  lease.  A

contract is,  or contains  a  lease  if the  contract  conveys the  right to  control  the  use  of an  identified

asset for a period of time in  exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessor

The Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Company does  not transfer substantially all the  risks and rewards of ownership of

an  asset  are  classified  as  operating  leases.  Rental  income  from  operating  lease  is  recognised  on  a

straight-line  basis  over the term  of the  relevant  lease.  Initial  direct  costs  incurred  in  negotiating  and

arranging  an  operating  lease  are  added  to  the  carrying  amount  of the  leased  asset  and  recognised

over  the  lease  term  on  the  same  basis  as  rental  income.  The  depreciation   policy  for  depreciable

underlying  assets  subject to  operating  leases  is  consistent  with  the  Company's  normal  depreciation

policy for similar assets.

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

leases  are  classified  as  finance  leases  when  substantially  all  of the  risks  and  rewards  of  ownership

transfer  from  the  Company  to  the   lessee.   Amounts  due  from   lessees  under  finance   leases  are

recorded  as  receivables  at  the  Company's net  investment  in  the  leases.

`..:-::

lease   income   is
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allocated  to   accounting   periods  so   as  to  reflect  a   constant   periodic   rate  of  return   on  the   net

investment outstand'ing in  respect of the lease.

Company as a lessee

At  the  contract  commencement  date,  the  Company  recognizes  right  -of -  use  asset  and  a  lease

liability.  A right -of -use asset  is an  asset that represents a  lessee's  right to  use  an  underlying  asset

for the  lease term. The  Company has elected  not to apply the aforesaid  requirements to short term

leases (leases which at the commencement date has a  lease term of 12 months or less) and  leases for

which the underlying asset is of low value as described in  paragraphs  83 -89 of lnd AS  116.

A  right  of  use  asset  is  initially  measured  at  cost  ancl  subsequently  applies the  cost  mode  ie  less  any

accumulated    depreciation    and    any    accumulated    impairment    losses    and    adjusted    for    any

remeasurement of lease  liability.  Ind  AS  16,  Property,  Plant and  Equipment  is  applied  in  depreciating

the right -of -use asset.

A  lease  liability is  initially  measured  at the  present value  of the  lease  payments that  are  not  paid  at

that date.  The  lease  payments  are discounted  using the  interest rate  implicit in  the  lease.  If that  rate

cannot be  readily determined, the  Company's  incremental  borrowing  rate  is  used.  Subsequently, the

carrying  amount  of  the  lease  liability  is  Increased  to  reflect  Interest  on  lease  liability;   reduced  to

reflect the  lease  payments;  and  remeasured  to  reflect any  reassessment or lease  modifications or to

reflect revised in -substance fixed lease payments.

2.15 Securitisation of Finance Lease Receivable

Lease  Receivables  securitised  out  to  Special  Purpose  Vehicle  in  a  securitisation  transactions  are  de-

recognised  in  the  balance  sheet  when  they  are  transferred  and  consideration  has  been  received  by

the Company.

The  resultant gain/loss  arising on  securitization  is  recogn'ised  in  the  Statement of  Profit &  Loss  in the

year in which transaction takes place.

Lease  Receivables  assigned  through  direct  assignment  route  are  de-recognised  in  the  balance  sheet

when  they  are  transferred  and  consideration  has  been   received   by  the  Company.   Profit  or  loss

resulting from such assignment is accountecl for in the year of transaction.

2.16 leasing of Railway Infrastructure Assets

ln  terms  of  Indian  Accounting  Standard  116,  the  inception  of lease  takes  place  at  the  earlier  of the

date  of the  lease agreement and the date  of a  commitment by the  parties to the  principal  provisions

of the lease.

The  commencement  of the  lease  term is  the  date  from  which  the  lessee  is  en

right to use the leased  asset.  It is the date of initial  recogn.ition of the lease.

d  to  exerc'ise  its
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As  such,  in  respect  of  Railway  Infrastructure  Assets,  which  are  under  construction  and  where  the

Memorandum  of Understanding / terms  containing the  principal  provisions  of the  lease are  in  effect

with the Lessee,  pending execution of the lease agreement, the transactions  relating to the lease are:

(a) presented  as "Advance against Railway Infrastructure Assets to be leased";  and thereafter

(b)  transferred  to  "Project  Infrastructure  Assets  under  Finance  Lease  Arrangement"  on   receipt  of
utilization  report from the  lessee; and thereafter

(c) transferred to lease  receivable as per lnd AS 116 on execution Of lease agreement.

2.17 Dividends

Dividends and  interim dividends  payable to the Company's shareholders are  recognized as changes in

eciuity  in  the  period  in  which  they  are  approved  by  the  shareholders'  meeting  and  the   Board  of

Directors respectively.

2.18Material Prior Period Errors

Material  prior  per.iod  errors  are  corrected  retrospectively  by  restating the  comparative  amounts for

the  prior  periods  presented  in  which  the  error  occurred.  If  the  error  occurred  before  the  earliest

period   presented,   the   open.ing   balances   of  assets,   liabilities   and   equity   for   the   earliest   period

presented, are restated.

2.19 Earnings per share

Basic  earnings  per  equity  share  is  computed  by  div.iding  the  net  profit  or  loss  attributable  to  equity

shareholders  of the  Company  by the  weighted  average  number of equity  shares  outstanding  during

the financial  year.

Diluted  earnings  per equity share  is  computed  by dividing the  net profit or loss  attributable to equity

shareholders  of  the  Company  by  the  weighted  average   number  of  equity  shares  considered  for

deriving  basic earnings  per equity share  and  also the weighted  average  number of equity shares that

could  have been issued upon conversion of all  dilutive potential equity shai.es.

2.20Statement of Cash Flows

Statement  of cash  flows  is  prepared  in  accordance  with  the  indirect  method  prescribed  in  lnd  AS  7
`Statement of cash flows'.

2.210perating Segments

The  Managing  Director  (MD)  of  the  Company  has  been  identified  as  the  Chief  Operating  Decision

Maker (CODM) as defined by lnd AS  108,  "Operating Segments''.

The Company has identified  'Leasing and Finance' as its sole reporting segme
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2.22 Financial  Instruments

A financial  instrument  is  any  contract that gives  rise to  a financial  asset  of one  entity and  a  financial

liability or equ.ity 'instrument of another entity.

2.22.1.   I:inancial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All  financial  assets  are  recognized  initially  at  fair value  plus,  in  the  case  of financial  assets  not

recorded  at  fair  value  through  profit  or  loss,  transaction  costs  that  are  attributable  to  the

acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A  `debt  instrument'  is  measured  at  the  amortized  cost  if  both  the  following  conditions  are

met:

(a)       The asset is  held w.ithin a  business model whose objective  isto hold  assets forcollecting

contractual cash flows, and

(b)       Contractual  terms  of the  asset give  rise on  specified  dates  to  cash  flows  that  are  solely

payments of principal and interest (Sppl) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial  measurement,  such financial  assets  are subsequently  measured  at  amortized  cost

using  the  Effect.ive   Interest  Bate  (EIR)  method.  Amortized  cost  is  calculated   by  taking  into

account  any  discount or premium  on  acquisition  and fees  or costs that are  an  integral  part of

the  EIR.  The  EIR  amortization  is  included  in  finance  income  in  the  profit  or  loss.  The  losses

arising from  impairment are  recognized  in the  profit or loss. This category generally applies to

trade and other rece.ivables.

Debt instrument at Fair value through Other Comprehenslve Income (FVTOcl)

A `debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOcl  if both of the following criteria are met:

(a)       The  objective  of  the   business  model   is  achieved   both   by  collecting  contractual   cash

flows and selling the financial assets, and

(b)       The asset'scontractualcashflows representsppI

Debt instruments included within the  FVTOcl  category are measured initially as well  as at each

reporting  date  at  fair value.  Fair  value  movements  are  recognized  in  the  Ocl.  However,  the

Company  recognizes  interest  income,   impairment  losses  &  reversals
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gain   or  loss  in  the  profit  and  loss.   On  derecognition  of  the  asset,   cumulative  gain  or  loss

previously recognized .in Ocl  is reclassified from the equity to profit and  loss.

Debt instrument at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is  a  residual  category for debt instruments.  Any  debt  instrument,  which  does  not  meet

the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOcl, is classified as at FVTPL.

In  addition,  the  Company  may  elect  to  classify  a  debt  insti.ument,  which  otherwise  meets

amortized  cost or  FVTOcl  criteria,  as  at  FVTPL.    However,   such   election    is   allowed    only   if

doing  so   reduces   or  eliminates   a   measurement  or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
`accounting mismatch').  Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured  at

fair value with all changes  recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity investments

All   equity  investments  in  entities  other  than  subs.idiaries  and  joint  venture  companies  are

measured   at  fair  value.   Equity  instruments  which  are   held  for  trading  are  classified  as   at

FVTPL  For all  other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as  at

FVTOcl  or  FVTPL.  The  Company  makes  such  election  on  an  instrument  by  instrument  basis.

The  classification  is  made  on  init.ial  recognit.Ion  and  is  irrevocable.  The  Company  has  decided

to classify its investments into equ.ity shares of lRCON  International  Limited through  FVTOcl.

If  the   Company  decides  to   classify  an   equity  instrument  as  at   F\/TOcl,  then   all  fair  value

changes   on   the   instrument,   excluding   dividends,   are   recognized   'in   the   Ocl.   There   is   no

recycling of the amounts from ocl to statement of profit ancl  loss, even on sale of investment.

However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity  instruments  included  within  the  FVTPL  category  are  measured  at  fair  value  with  all

changes  recognized  in the profit and loss.

De-recognition

A  financial  asset  (or,  where  applicable,  a  part  of  a  financial  asset  or  part  of  a  Company  of

similar  financ.Ial  assets)  is  primarily  derecognized  (i.e.  removed  from  the  Company's  balance

sheet) when:

•          The  rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

•          The  Company  has  transferred  its  rights  to  receive  cash  flows  from  the  asset  or  has

assumed an  obligation to  pay the  received  cash  flows in full  without material  delay to a

third   party   under   a   `pass-through'   arrangement;   and   either   (a)   the   Company   has

transferred  substantially  all  the  risks  and  rewards  of the  asset,  or  (b)  the  Company  has

neither transferred  nor retained  substantially all  the  risks  and  rewards  of the  asset,  but

has transferred c

'1'

ab
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Impalrment of financial assets

ln  accordance  with   lnd  AS  109,  the  Company  applies  expected  credit  loss  (ECL)  model  for

measurement  and  recognition  of impa.irment  loss  on  the  following financial  assets  and  credit

risk exposure:

(a)        Financial  assets  that  are  debt  instruments,  and  are  measured  at  amortized  cost  e.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits and bank balance.

(b)        Financ.ial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOcl.

(c)        Lease  receivables  underlndAS  116.

(d)       Loan commitmentswhich are notmeasured as atFVTPL.

(e)        Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL.

For  recogn'ition  of  impairment  loss  on  other financial  assets  and  risk  exposure,  the  Company

determines  that  whether  there  has  been  a  significant  .Increase  in  the  credit  risk  since  initial

recogn.ition.  If credit  risk  has  not  increased  significantly,  12  month  ECL  is  used  to  provide  for

impairment  loss.  However,  if credit  risk  has  increased  significantly,  lifetime  ECL is  used.  If,  in  a

subsequent  period,  credit  quality  Qf the  instrument  improves  such  that there  is  no  longer  a

significant  increase in credit risk since  init.ial  recognition, then the entity reverts to  recognizing

impairment loss allowance based  on 12 month  ECL.

Z.22.2.   Financial  liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial   liabilities   are   classified,   at   .Initial   recogn.ition,   as   financial   liabilities   at   fair   value

through    profit   or   loss,    borrowings,    payables,   or   as   derivatives   designated   as   hedging
•instruments  in  an  effective  hedge,  as appropriate.  All financial  liabilities are  recognized  initially

at   fair   value   and,   in   the   case   of   borrowings   and   payables,   net   of   directly   attributable

transaction   costs.   The   Company's   financial   liabilities   include   trade   and   other   payables,

borrowings  including  bank  overdrafts,  financial  guarantee  contracts  and  derivative  financial

instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial I.iabil'ities depends on their classification, as described  below:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After  initial  measurement,  such  financial  liabilities  are  subsequently  measured  at  amortized

cost  using the  EIR  method.  Gains  and  losses  are  re`cognized  in  profit or  loss  when  the  liabilities

are derecognized  as well  as through  the  EIR amortization  process Amortized  cost  is  calculated

by  taking  .Into  account  any  d.iscount  or  premium  on  acquisition  and  fees  or  costs  that  are  an

integral  part  of the  EIR.  The  EIR amortiz

This category generally applies to

is  included  in  finance  costs  in

payables and other c *:igb::,,I::s
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial   liabilities   at   fair   value   through   profit   or   loss   include   financial   liabilities   held   for

trad.ing   and   financial   liabilities   designated   upon   initial   recognition   as   at  fair  value  through

profit  or  loss.  Financial  liabilities  are  classified  as  held  for  trading  if they  are  incurred  for  the

purpose  of  repurchasing  in  the   near  term.  This  category  also   .Includes  derivative  financial

instruments  entered  into  by the  Company that  ai.e  not  designated  as  hedging  instruments  in

hedge   relationships   as   defined   by   lnd   AS   109.   Separated   embedded   derivatives   are   also

classified  as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on  liabilities held for trading are recognized .in the statement of profit and  loss.

Financial  liabilities  designated  upon  initial  recognit'ion  at  fair  value  through  profit  or  loss  are

designated  at the  initial  date of recognition,  and  only if the criteria  in  lnd AS  109  are  satisfied.

For liabilities designated as  FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own  credit

risks  are  recognized  in  ocl.  These gains/losses  are  not subsequently transferred to  profit  and

loss.  However,  the  Company may transfer the  cumulative  gain  or  loss  within  eciuity.  All  other

changes  in  fair value  of  such  liability  are  recognized  in  the  statement  of  profit  and  loss.  The

Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through  profit and  loss.

De-recognition

A  financ.ial   I.iability  is   derecognized  when  the  obligat.lan   under  the   liability  .is  discharged   or

cancelled  or expires.  When  an  existing financial  liability  is  replaced  by another from  the  same

lender  on  substantially  diffei.ent  terms,  or the  terms  of  an  existing  liability  are  substantially

modified,  such  an  exchange  or  modification  is  treated  as  the  derecognition  of  the  original

liability   and   the   recognition   of   a   new   liability.   The   difference   in   the   respective   carrying

amounts is recognized  in the statement of profit and  loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The  Company  uses  derivative financial  instruments,  such  as forward  currency contracts,  cross

currency  swaps  and  interest  rate  swaps  to  hedge  its  foreign  currency  risks  and  interest  rate

risks of foreign  currency  loans.  Such derivative financial  instruments  are  initially recognized  at

fair value  on  the date on which  a  derivat`ive  contract  is  entered  into  and  are  subsequently  re-

measured   at  fair  value.   Derivatives   are   carried   as   financial   assets   when   the  fair  value   is

positive  and  as  financial  liabilities  when  the  fair value  .is  negative.  Any  gains  or  losses  arising

from  changes  in  the fair value  of derivatives  are taken to statement  of profit  and  loss.  Where

the  derivative  is  designated  as  a  hedging  instrument,  the  account'ing for  subsequent  changes

in  fair value  depends  on  the  nature  of item  being  hedged  and  the  type  of hedge  relationship

designated.   Where  the   difference

reimbursed to the lessee.

the   lessee,   the   amount

BEEii=
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2.23 Standards issued but not yet effective:

The   Ministry   of   Corporate   Affairs   has   vide   notification   dated   23    March   2022   notified
Companies   (Indian  Accounting  Standards)  Amendment  Rules,  2022  which   amends  certain

accounting   standards,    and    are   effective    1   Apr.il    2022.    Below    is    a    summary    of   such
amendments:

1.     IndAS 16 Property,  Plantand  Equipment
Proceeds before intended use of property, plant, and equipment.
The  amendment clarifies that an  entity shall  deduct from  the cost of an  item  of property,

plant,  and equipment any proceeds  received from selling items produced while the entity
is   preparing  the   asset  for   its   intended   use   (for   example,   the   proceeds   from   selling

samples produced when testing a  machine to see if it is functioning properly).

2.     Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets

onerous Contracts -Cost of fulfilling a contract.
The  amendment explains that the  cost of fulfilling a  contract comprises: the  incremental
costs  of  fulfilling  that  contract  and  an  allocation  of  other  costs  that  relate  directly  to
fulfilling  contracts.

3.     Ind  AS  103  Bus.inesscombinations

References to the conceptual framework.
The   amendment   adds   a   new   exception   in   lnd   AS   103   for   liabilities   and   contingent
liabilities.

4.     Ind  AS  109  Financial  Instruments

Fees  .Included  in the  10% test for de-recognition  of financial  liabilities.

The  amendment  clarifies  which  fees  an  entity  includes  when  it  applies  the  `10%'  test  in

assessing  whether to  clerecognise  a  financial  liability.  An  entity  includes  only fees  paid  or

received   between  the   entity   (the   borrower)   and  the   lender,   including  fees   paid   or
received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.

5.     IndAS lot  Firsttime adoption
Subsidiary as a first-time adopter.

Simpl.ifies the  application  of lnd AS  101 by a  subsidiary that becomes  a first-time adopter

after its parent in relat.Ion to the measurement of cumulative translation differences.

6.      IndAS41  Agriculture

Taxation  in fair value measurements.

The  amendment removes the  requirement in  lnd  AS 41 for entities to  exclude cash flows
for taxation  when  measuring fair value.  This aligns the fair value  measurement  in  lnd  AS

41 with the requirements of lnd AS  113,  Fair Value Measurement.

These  amendments  have  either  no  applicab'ility  to  the  Company  or  if  applicable,  the  impact  is

either immaterial  or presently being
lziHETHi

DELHI

M.No. 060C30
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Indlan Railway Finarl.e Corporation Llmjted

CIN L65910DL1986G01026363

Notes to finant:ial statements as at and for the half year ended 30 September 20ZZ

(All  amounts  in  millions  of  lNR,  unless  stated  otherwise)

Note 9  : Other Flnanclal Assets
As at                              As at

Particulars                                                                                                                                                                                           3osept:Smabter2oz2       3°S€2Po`:rber           3iMarch zoz2

Amount recoverable from  Ministry of Railwavs on  account of exchange rate variation / derivatives#

Project  Infrastructure Asset under Finance  lease Arrangements-EBR-lF

Project Infrastructure Asset under  Finance  Lease Arrangements-EBR Speclal

Advance agalnst Railway Infrastructure Assets to  be leased

Advance  Funding Against   National  Proiect

Interest accrued  but not due  on advance for  railway project to be leased

Security  deposits

Hoilse  bullcllng advance  (secured).

Advance to employees+t

Interest accrued but not due on  advance to employees...

Interest accrued but not due on  loans

Interest accrued   but not due  on investment

Interest accrued  but not due on 54 EC bond application money

Interest accrued  but not due on  deposit

Amount recoverable from  others

Gross Total

Less:  lmpairment on  interest accrued  and due  on loans & deposits/ Investments  ....
Net Total

19,341,61                          3,059.41                       11,037.15

14,01,022.21                14,24,332  60               15,09,946 57

5,56,848.63                  5,01,835  32                  5,40,173 ,59

87,185.21                       27,083.62

1,76,197. 89                   1,10,362.41                  1,45,867.60

61.06

941

6.64

1.59

53.88                                 54  57

2.49                                     2. 34

2.55                                   6.00

118                                    130

12,285. 20                       10,269.02                       13,621. 66

12.03                                       5.10

946                             28  80

1436

77.S4                                     5.39

21,66,053.30               21,37,Z 17.46               22,47,833.69

49.14                                   41.12                                   54.51

•lncludes  Rs   1.79  million   for  30  Septeml)er  2022,  Rs,1.99  mllllon   for  30  September  2021,  Rs.1.89  million for  31  March  202Z to  Key  Managerial  Personnel.

-.Includes Rs. 0.25  mimon   for 30 September 2022,  Rs.  0.40 m"ion   for 30 September 2021, Rs.  0.33 mlllion   for 31  March  2022 to  Key Managerial  Personnel.

-..lnclucles R5,  0.37  mnlion   for 30 September 2022,  Rs.  0.28  mimon   for 30 September  2021,  Rs. 0.33 million for 31  March  2022 to  Key Managerial  Personnel.

•...  The  Company has computed  expected  credit loss as  per  lnd AS  109,  Financial  Instruments in  accordance with  Reserve  Bank of India  direction  RBl/2019-20/170

DOR(NBFC),CC,PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20    dated    13th    March    2020    based    on    Reserve    Bank    of   lnclia    circular    no.    RBl/2017-18/181_ONBR    (PD)    CC    No.

092/03.10.001/2017-18  dated  31  May  2018  read  with  letter  no.  DNR8  (PD)  C0  No.127"03.10.001/2018-19  dated  21  December  2018 which  was  earlier  exempted

vide  notification  DNBR  PD 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated  lst September 2016 for all government NBFC company

#  Amount  recoverable  from  Mlr`istrv  of  Railway  on  account  of  exchange  rate  varlation  /  derivatives  includes  amount  recoverable  from  Ministry  of  Railways  on

account of MTM derlvatives of the  respective  period.

Note  10  : Current Tax Assets (net)

Particulars....AS:`....3oseptem|]cr
30 September 20Z2

Asat

31 March 2022

TDS & advance tax

Less.  Provision  for tax

%`yio:i::oo#i::iiQ€*
Nowo®Nm`

6,402.11                       15,795.27                         6,497  70

(6,487. 57)                             (124.62)

6,277.49                       9,307.70                       6,373.08
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Indton Raltway Flnarlce Corporation Llmlted

CIN  L6S910D11986Goloz6363

Notes to flnandal statements as ct alid for the half year ended 30 September Z022

(AII  amour`ts  ln  mlllions  of  INR.  unless  stated  otherwise)

Gross block

Balance as on  1 Aprll 2021A-
ACTuisitlons  through  busmess  combinations

Arrount Of change d ue to  reval\Jation

DispesalsA-d-
Balance as on 31  March Z022

Balance as on  1 April 2022A-
Atqulsittonsthroughbusinesscombinatlons

Amount of change d ue to  revaluatron

Disposals

Adjustment

Oalanco as on  30 September 2022

Balance es on i April 2021

Additlorls

Acquisitions through business combinations

Amount Of change due to revaluation

Disposals

Adjustment

8al3nce as  on 30 Soptomber 2021

Acc`.mulated Amol . i :al len

Balance as on  I Aprll 2021

Amortisation expense

Elimination  on  d isposals  Of assets

lmpairment losses or reversals thereof

Balance as oli 31  Mawh 2022

Balance as on  1 April 2022

Amortisatun expense

Elimination  on  d lsposals  Of assets

lrnpalrment losses or reversals thereof

Balance as on 30  Soptambar 2022

Balance as on  1 April 2021

Anrortisationexpense

Elimination  on  d isposals  Of assets

lmpairrnent losses or reversals thereof

Balance  as on 30  September 20ZI

Net BJock 31 March 2022

Not Clock 3o September 2o22

Not Block 30 September 20ZI

Note  13 : Otl`er Nonflnanclal Assets
As at                                                            As at                                           As at

30 Sootember z022                            30 Seotember 2021                 31 March 2022
Particulars

Caplt3J Advances

Advance to  FA a CAO,  Northern Rallway

Advance to  RLDA

Advances otliei than capltal advances
Advance to others

Othe,§

Prepald expenses

Tax Refund  Recelv8bles

GST  recoverable

GST I nput-  Project Assets.

Government Dues ReceIvables

leave Enc@shmen`  Funded Assets (Net)

Gratuity  Fiinded  Assets  (Net)

Total
•Includes  GST  Input5  on  rolllng  stock  and  Infrastructure  as§et§`



Iridlan Flalli^Io}/ Finones Corporollor. umlted

CIN  165910D11986G01026363

Notes `o flnencLal statements as at and for the ha« year ended 30 Saptember 2022

(All  amounts  ln  mllllons  of  lNR,  unless  stated  otherwlse)

As at                                                          As a`                                           Asat

30 Sootombei 20ZZ                            so september 2021                  31  Man:l` 202Z
pardculars

( 0 Trade payables

W Total outstanding dues Of mlcro  enterprlses and  small
enterprises

W) Total outstanding dues  Of creditors other than  micro
enterprises and  small enterprises

(11)  Other  payables

in Total outstiindl ng dues Of in lcro enterprises and  smal.I
enterprlses

(ii) Total outstand ing dues Of creditors athar than  micro

enterprises and  small enterprlsos

Total
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Indian Railway Fir\ance Corporaton Llrrlited
CIN  L65910DL1986G01026363

Notes to financfal statements as at and for the lialf year ended 30 September 2022

(All amounts in  millions of INR,  unless stated  otherwise)

Note  17  : Other Financial  Liabilities

As at                                       As at                                 As at

30September2022        30September2021        31 Ma.ch2022

Amount payable to  Mlnistry of Railways-leased Assets

Amount payable to  Ministry of Railways -Project Assets

Amount  payable to  Mlnistry of Rallways

Interest accrued  but not due

llablllty for matured and unc!aimed  bonds and  interest accrued thereon

Llablllty  for unclaimed  dMdend

Secu rity Depos its

Dlvidend  paya ble

Earnest money deposlt

Total

Note 18 :  Provisions

1,55,765.57                             1,13,872.16                     31,350 88

59,461.87                                                     -                      57,136.98

2,15, 227.44                            1,13,872.16                    88,487.86

1,07,858.69                            1,07, 337.92                 1,05,636.33

83.92                                           78 ,S2                            117 ,62

9.77                                              4.26                                  9  96

0.50                                                                                        0.19

8,184.41

0.20

3,31,364.73                          Z,21,Z93.06               1,94,251.96

As at                                       As at                                 As at

30September2022        30September2021        31March 2022

P rovlslon for em ployee beneflts

Provlslo n for corporate social  responsi bility

Total

Provision   on   asset   as   per   Reserve   Bank   of   India   norms   presented   as   a   reductlon   being

impairment loss allowance from

-Note 7 -loans

- Note 8 - Investments

-Note 9 -Other financial assets

Total

Note  19 :  I)eferred Tax liabilities (net

16.91                                              17.53                                 16.99

812.47                                       274 04                           518.72

238.28                                       274.09                           274.09

0.03                               0.01

49.14                                            41.12                                54,51

As at                                       As at                                 As at
30 September 2022        30 Sei)tember 2021        3l March zozz

Deferred tax liablllty (net)  (Refer accounting  policy Note  no. 2.7)

Less: Ad/usted  ln  retalned earnlngs  due to change  in accounting policy

Total

Note 20 : Other Nan-Financlal uabllltles

As at                                       As at                                 As at

30Septemberz022        30September20Z1        31 March2022

Statutory dues

GST Payable under RCM.

Tax deducted at source  payable-Income Tax

Tax deducted at soiirce  payable-GST

Total
I  On  account of Project Infrastructure Asset under Finance  Lease Arrangements-EBR Special

5,110.36

44,105.92

333.07                                        272.14                            763 ,56

92.76                                          211.27                             380.68

5,536.19                             44,589.33                     4,736.43

Ff   thi#`.  %5
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Indian Railway I:Inance Corporation Llmited
CI N  I.65910D11986G01026363

Notes to financial statements as at and for the half year ended 30 Septerr`ber ZOZZ

(All  amounts  in  millions of lNR,  unless stated  otherwise)

Note  22  : Other Equit

As at                                         As at                                          As at

30 September 202Z           30 September 2021                31 March 20ZZ

Share  Issue expenses

Securlties  Premium  Reserve-Equity

Reserve  Fund  u/s 45-lc of Deserve  Bank of I ndia Act,1934

General  reserve

Retained  earnings

Equity  Instruments through  other comprehensive  Income

Total

Note 22.1: Share Issue Expenses

(377.87)

19,008.74

39,658.00

1,74,032,28

72,418.38

66.32

(376.84)
19,008.74

26,733.47

1,74,032.28

39,008.31

80.22

(377  87)

19,008.74

32,906.28

1,74,032.28

53,641.86

67.05

3,04,805.85                           2,58,486.18                            2,79,278.34

Asat

30 September 2022
Asat

30 September 2021

Asat
31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the period

Changes  in  accounting  policy/prior period  Errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the period
Additlon  durlng the period*

Closing balance at the end Of the period

(377. 87)                                          (3 76.84)                                           (376. 84)

(377.87)                                         (376. 84)                                           ( 376.84)

(103)

`376.84)                                       (377.87)

'Share  Issue expenses  Includes stamp duty fees  and  listing fees forthe amoiint of Rs.123.84  millions  (As at 30 September  2021:  123.84 Million  and  as at  31

March  2021:  123.84 Million) and  254.03  mHlions  (As at 30 September 2021:  253.00 milltons and as at 31  March  2022:  254.03  millions),  respectively.

Note 22.2: Securities Premium Reserve-Equi
Asat

30 September 2022

Asa'
30 September 20Z1

Asat
31 March 20Z2

Balance at the beginning of the period
Changes  in  accounting  policy/prior period  Errors

F`estated balarice at the beginning of the period

Addition during the perlod

Closing balance at the end of tl`e period

19,008.74                                19,008.74                                  19,008 74

19,008.74                               19,008.74                                19,008. 74

19,008.74                               19,008.74 19,cog.74

Securities  Premium  Reserve  is  used  to  record  ttie  premium  on  issue  of  shares.  The  reserve  can  be  utilised  only  for  llmited  purpose  such  as  issuance  of

bonus shares, writing off the  preliminary expenses  in  accordance with the provisions of section  52 the  Companies Act,  2013.

Note 22.3: Reserve Fund ii/s 45-IC Of Reserve Bank of lndl@ Act,1934
Asa'

30 September 2022

Asat
30 September 20Z1

Asat

31 March 20ZZ

Balance at the I)eglnning of the period

Changes in  accounting  policy/prior period  Errors

Restated balance at the beginning Of the period

Addition  during the  period

Closing balance at the end of the period

3 2,906. 28                                 20,726.61                                   20,726. 61

3Z,906.Z8                                ZO,726.61                                  20,726.61

6,751.72                                    6,006. 86 12,179.67

39,658.00                               26,733.47 32,906.28

Asat
30 September 2022

Asat

30 September 20Z1

Asat

31 March Z022

Balance at tl`e be8lnning of tlie period

Changes  ln accounting policy/prior  perLod  Errors

Restated balance at the beginning Of the period

Additlon  during the  period

Closing balance at the end Of the period

1,74,03 2. 28                              1,74,032.28                                1,74,03 2  28

1,74,032.Z8                            1,74,032. Z8                              1,74,032.Z8

1,74,03Z.28 1,74,03Z. 28                              1,74,03Z.28

General  reserve  is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from  retained earnings for appropriatlon

a transfer from one componer`t of another and ls not an Item of other comprehensive income.

General  reserve  is created  by

griPr
€`,narlce (

;ff:B:7:
%, l!i?!!!i?986  iGoloo26365-.Q£
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Indlan Railway Flnance Corporation Llmited

CIN  165910D11986G01026363

Notes to flnanclal statements as at and for the half year ended 30 September 2022

(All  amounts  ln  milllons of INR,  unless stated  otherwlse)

Asa'
]0 September 2022

A§at

30 September 2021

Asa'
31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the period

Changes ln  accountin8  policy/prior period  errors

Restated balance at the begiming Of the period
Profit for the year

Transfer to  Reserve  Fund  u/s 45-lc of Reserve  Bank of I ndia Act,1934

Final  Dividend

Interim  Dlvidend

Divlclend  tax

Clos.mg balance at the end Of the period

53,641.86                                  14,980.31                                    14,980. 31

S3,641.86                                14,980.31

33,761.40                                 30,034.86

(6,751. 72)                                   (6,006.86)

(8,233.16)

14,980.31

60,903.97

(12,179  67)

(10,062  75)

72,418.38                               39,008.31                                 53,641.86

Retained  earnings represent the  amount of accumulated  eai.nings of the  Company.

instruments Through Other Comprehensive IncomeNote  ZZ.6:  Equl

Asat

30 September 20Z2

Asat
30 September 20Z1

Asat

31 March 20ZZ

Balance at the l>eglnning of the perlod

Changes in  accounting  policy/prior period  errors

F`estated balance at the beginnin8 Of the period
Total comprehensive income for the period

Closing balance a` the end of the period

The  change  ln  fair value of eqiMty Instrument as at FVTOCI   excl

17 fie                                7|.as
2.56                                                   (10.61)



Indian I.ailway Flnance Corporation Llmlted

CI N  L659loD11986G01026363

Notes to fln@nclal statements as @t and for the half year ended 30 September 2022

(All  amounts  ln  mlllions  of lNR,  unless  stated  otherwise)

Note 23 : Interest Income

on flnanclal assets measured at amortised cost :
-Interest on  loans

-Interest income from deposits

• Interest income from investments

• Pre commencement lease -Interest Income

-Interest  income  on  applicatlon  moliey

Total

Note Z4 : lease Income

2,83S,02                                   3,039.41                                   6, 392 05

344.74                                        114.91                                        144 ,88

002                                            a.92                                            131

31,018  02                                 29,952.76                                66,373  60

26.21                                               9  46                                            34.88

34,Z24.01                              33,117.46                             72,946.72

Lease Income

Rolling Stock

Project Assets

Toto I

Note Z5 : Other Income

62, 317.70                                59,179.70                            1,18,284 63

17,830.68                                         416  21                                 11,75133

80,148.38                              59,595.91                          1,30,035.96

30 September 2022           30 September 20Z1

Interest  lr`ccrme  on  secilrlty deposlt glven  towards  lease

Mlscellaneous  Income

Total

0  59                                              0.60                                              1.18

S  61                                                 0.02                                             22.1S



Indian Rallway Finance Corporation Llmited

CIN  L65910DL1986G010Z6363

Notes to flnanci@I statements as at and for the half year ended 30 September 20Z2

(All  amounts in  milllons of INR,  unless stated  otherwise)

Note Z6: Finance Cost

on flnancl@l llabilltles measured at amor.ised cost :

Interest  on  debt securlt.es

Interest  on  borrowlngs

Discount  on  commercial  paper

Interest  on  delayed  payments to  Mlnistry of Railways

Interest to  lr`come Tax Authorities

Interest  Expenses Accrued  on  Lease  LJabllltles

Other borrowmg cost

Sub-Total

Less:  Borrowing costs capitallzed  on  Rallway  lnfrastructure Assets

Total

Note 27:  Impairment on Financial In§truments Measured at Amortlsed Cost

69,408.10                                66,082.22

56,120.07                                 39,637.71

246.14

S48,11                                       114.88

5J7                                       9,05
113.28                                         127.30

1,34,526 82

85,640-07

324.49

796.22

1648

168.26

1,Z6,195.33                           1,06,217.30                          2,21,472.34

46,213.55                                43,911.08                               80, 724.52

Loans &  Interest accrued thereon

Total
(41.19)                                               (8.76)                                                4  61

*  The  Company  being  a  government  owned  NBFC,  hitherto  exempt,  is  subject to  provisioning  norms  vide  Reserve  Bank  of  India  circular  no   RBl/2017-18/181_DNBR  (PD)  CC   No.

092/03.10.001/2017-18  dated  31  May  2018.  Income  Qecognition  and  Asset  Classification  (lRAC)  norms  to  be  complied  by  31  March  2019.  However,  RBl  had  vide  letter  no  DNRB

(PD).  CO.No.1271/03.10.001/2018-19  dated   21   December  2018  had   exempted  the  Company  from  the  aforesaid   requirements  to  the  extent  of  its  direct  exposure   on  the
sovereign. Therefore the company had  r`ot applled impairment requirements to Its exposilre with MOR. The comput@tion of impalrment is as under:

loan to  lRCON  International  Llmlted

loan to  Ball Vlkas  NJgam  limited

Debt Secui.ities

Interest accrued ofl  above

Total

Piovlsion @ 0.4%

less: Ecl alreadv created

Change in impel.ment

6,153 07                                12, 306.14

53,416.47                               56, 216 00

7.43

12, 285  20                                 10, 281.05

12,306.14

56,216 00

2.93

13,626.76

71,854.74                               78,810.62                              82,151.83

287.42                                         315  24                                        328,61

328.61                                        324.00                                        324.00

(41.19)                                            (8.76)

The  Company  apart from  the  above  is  of the view that  no further impairment  is  required  as  per  expected  credit  loss  model  prescribed  in  lN0 AS  109,  Financial  Instruments  as

lrcon  lnternatlonal  Llmlted  and  Rall  Vikas  Nigam  limlted,  both,  are  uncler  the  Mlnlstry  of  Railways,  Government  of  India  and  the  Ccrmpany  do  not  expect  any  coricern  in  the

repayment of aforesaid loans.

Note 28 : Employee 8eneflt Expense
llalfYear Ended                    Half Year Ended

30 September 2022           30 September zoz1
53.08                                            3131

10.50                                          754

0.79                                        0$1

Year Ended

31 March 2022
8431

2210

1.07

Particulars

Safarres and wages

Contribution to provident and  others funds

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Note 29:  Depreciation, Amortlsation and I rnpai rment

P-lars
DDepreciationonproperty,plantandequipment

Depreciation  on  RO\J  Assets

Amortisati on Of intangible  assets

Total                                                                        ',f==:==

/,/ '.J}'-



Irldian Rallway Flnance Corporation L]mlted

CIN  165910DL1986G010Z6363

Notes to financial statements as at and for the half year ended 30 September 2022

(All  amounts in  milllons  of INR,  unless stated  otherwise)

Half veal Ended                    Half Yea r Ended                      Year Ended

30 September 20Z2           30 September 2021              31 March 2022

Fee  &  subscrlption

Travelling

Rent

Prl ntlng & station erv

Director's  fees,  allowances and  expenses

Transport  hire charges

Insurance

Manpower Services

Legal  &  professional  charge

Loss  on  sale  of fixed  assets

Payment to audltors

Property tax

Office  maintenance charges

Offlce  equlpment  maintenance

Advertisement  &  publlclty

Sponsorshlp/Donatlon

Newspaper,  books  and  perlodlcals

Electricity charges

Exchange rate variatlon

Mlscellaneous  expenses

Corporate  social  res¢onslbility expenses

Total

4.00

2.43

24.16

0Z1

0.09

093

(0.10)

20.94

214

255

3.94

2.13

3.73

645

5,30

2834

16.S7

0.03

363

028

6.30

4.85

25.39

163

0.15                                                  0.28

1.15                                                     2.11

0.14                                              0.15

3.94                                        4188



Indian Rallway Finance Corporation Lirnlted

CI N  L65910DL1986G0102636.

Notes to flnanclal statements as at and for the half year ended 30 September 202Z

(All  amounts  in  millions of lNf`,  unless stated  otherwise)

Note 31: Income Taxes

Half Year Ended                    Half Year Ended                       Year Ended

30 September 2022           30 September 20Z1              31 March 202Z

Income Taxes Reco8nised  ln Profit and  Loss

Curl.entTax

ln respect of the current perlod

Adiustments for  prior  periods

Deferred Tax

ln respect of the current perlod

Total Income Tax Expense Recognised .in the Cu rient Period

The  Company  has  decided  to  exercise  the  option  permitted  under  section  115BAA  of the  Income  Tax  Act,  1961.  After  exercisir`g  the  option  of  Section   115BAA,  the  taxable

Income  uncler  the  provisions  of  Income  Tax  Act,  1961  comes  to  nil.  Further  after  adoption  of  Section  115BAA,  the  Company  is  outside  the  scope  and  applicability  of  MAT

provisions under Section  llSJB of Income Tax Act,1961.  Hence, no provlsion for tax has been made jn the financial statements.

The Income tax expense for the year can  be reconclled to the accounting profit as follows:

Halt Year Ended                    Half Year Ended                      Year Ended

30 September 2022           30 September 2021              31 March 2022

Pioflt before tax

Tax rate

Tax  thereon

Tax  Impact on  account of unabsorbed  depreciation  as  per ccmputatlon  under normal  provisions  of the

Income tax Act,1961  under the  head  `Profit  and  Gains  of Buslness'

Mirumum  alternate  tax  on  book  profits  as  per  section  115JB(1)  of  Income  Tax  Act,  1961  (see  note  1

below)

Proportlonate  mlnlmum  alternate  tax  on  accretlon  to  other  equity  on  date  of transltlon  to  lnd-AS  a5

per Sectlon  115JB  (2C)  of the  Income Tax Act,1961 (see  note  2  below)

Tax on  Items recognised in other comprehenslve income

Tax  on  adiustment for  earller years on  flnallzatlon  of assessments  by the  assessing authorities

Total tax expense

Note -1

33,758.60                                30.034.32                               60,901.55

0.25                                               0.25                                      25.168°/a

8,496.36                                   7,559.04                                 15, 327.70

(8,496  36)                                  (7,559  04)                               (15,327.70)

Half Year Ended                    Half Year Ended                       Year Ended

30 Septembe/ 202Z           30 September 2021              31 March z02Z

Proflt for the period as per lnd AS

less:  Ind AS adjustments

Total  (A)

Add:-

Expenses  u/s  14A of Income Tax  Act

Interest u/s 234 a & C

Provlslon for post retirement employee  benefits

Standard  asset  provlslon

Total  (B)

Total (A+a)

Less:-

Dividend  Income

Total  (C )

Book  Profit((A+B)-C)

Tax rate

Tax thereon

As the Company has

opted for section

115BAA of the  Income  -

tax Act,  1961, the  MAT

provisions  of section
115JB  of the  Income  -

tax Act,1961 are no

longer  applicable to the

Company

As the Company has

opted for section

115BAA of the  Income
-tax Act,1961, the

MAT provisions of

5ection  115JB of the

Income -tax Act,  1961

are  no  longer

applicable to the

Company

As the  Company  has

opted for sectlon

115BAA of the  Income
-tax  Act,1961,  the

MAT provisions  of

section  115JB  of the

lricome -tax Act,  1961

are no longer

applicable to the

Company



Indion Railway Flnance Corpora.Ion I)mited

CIN  165910DL1986G01026363

Notes to flnancial statements as at and for the half veal ended 30 September 202Z

(All  amouots in  mllllons  of INR,  iinless stated  otherwise)

Note -2

Other equity  as  per  lnd AS on  date  of converslon  I.e.,  01 April  2018

Adiustment on  account of fair value change ln the value of Investments measured at FVTOCI

Total

Other equlty  as  per AS on  date  of coriverslon  i`e.,  01 April  2018

Difference

Tax rate
Tax thereon

Proponionate amount Of tax payable during the period ended

Income Tax Recognlsed  ln Other Comprehens.ive Income

H@lfYear Ended                     Halt Year Ended                       Year Ended

30 September 202Z           30 September 2021             3l March zozz

Remeasurement of defined beneflt obligatlon

Total Income Tax Ftecognised  in Other Comprehensive Income

Note 32: Earning Per Share

Half Year Ended                    Half Year Ended                      Year Ended

30 Sei)tember 202Z            30 September 2021              3l Marcl` Z02Z

Net  Profit

Wel8hted  average number of eqlllty shares outstandlng

opening  balance  at the  beglnnlng  of the  perlod

Issued  during the  perlod

Brought back during the period

Add:  Number of potentlal  equlty shares on accouiit of receipt of share applicatlon money pending

allotment

We.ghted  average  number  of equity shares  [mcluding  diluted  equity share|  outstandlng at the end  of

the period

Earnlng per share-Ba5Ic  (Face  value  of  F`s`  10/-per share]

Earnlng per share-Diluted  (Face value  of Rs`  10/-per share}

DEIH'          \,_,\\

MN-a:;-L,\'r)-('

33, 758 60                               30,034,32                               60,898,36

13,06,85,06,000.00           13,06,85,06,000.00                  13,06,85,06,000

13,06,85,06,000 00           13,06,85,06,000.00                  13,06,85,06,000

2` 58                                               2.30                                               4. 66

2.58                                               2.30                                               4` 66



c;,+-.q`.-:.``-\,

`-



~
1

=
aS

=
R

a
a

t,a
S(a

a
a

S
SaS

E!:8a-Sg!Sa
S

:€
:

:
§

%
a

8
!

E
€

g
a

1`I,`8
8`a\ ar`

a-a

g
f!

iiI!:

aa
8?

aaa,D
#5:i

a
a

a
EE`

~
0

a
,

!ii!I

a
a

£

8

S
0®

0
01

r`
C

,
®

c>
a%

a8
h

a
•

t*
a\

a
=

8
r`

a
o

a
a

%
a

a
`

co=
I.

u,8-
cOa

s-;`
3

E3`
I

=`
a

a
a-

ta.`

=
8a

aR
a

a3
#

t83

a
10

a
a

n
,

9.
=

#
K

!
G

S
8

a
=`

a!
Stx,

ScO
Sa

Saaa
8i

S
.

9.
u,`a

g:
ut`C'

=
#?

a=
3a

%

RS
8

aa
ae

a
a
,

C
,

®
a\

g
®`

•
8`

8`
tJ

=
II

C
,

q
C

,
a

a
8

8
a

0®
¢

•

8
=

8
8

.
a

S
a

f3
uj

=
9.

cO
cO

a:-
S`

=`
co`

~
•

6
1`

*

g±
.!®

i;=JJ

i£tia`±9a,I3

i€•=I=

.98

Eiit:giJ3i:=¥j

:I3
¥=8

S•Eji§€

i!€

='Ea

a£!a?aii;E
3I3!£

I®'E=I38
t;tiE

:EC'Ei iiC)J2±
8•g5f E€3j

3'=!i
£€§

6E§
a'g=i89i£

a?i£



36  Company as a Lessee
The  Company  has  lease contracts  for office  premises. The  Company has recognised  Right  of Use Asset ancl  lease  Liability for  all  the  leases   Refer to  Note  2.14 significant  accounting

policy  on  leases.

The  escalation  clause  includes  escalations  generally  ranging from  7% to  109/o.  Lease term  includes the  renewal  term  wherever the  lessee  has  the  option  to  renew  the  lease  as  it  is

reasonably  certain  for the  lessee  to  exercise  the  optlon.  However,  the  Company  is  not  reasonably  certain  to  exercise  the  termination  option  after  the  expiry  of the  lock  in  period,

There  are  no  restrictions  imposed  by  lease  arrangements.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right of use assets recognised during and movement during the year

As at                                             As at                                      As at

30tliseptember2022        30thseptemberz021       31stMarch 2022
Closlng  Net  Carrying  Bal@n[e

Movement during the period

Opening  Net Carrying Value

Addltions

Deletlons

Depreciation

lmpairment/Adjustment

Closing Net Carrying Balance.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of Le3Se liabilities and movement during the year.

283,98                               224.25

343.71                               343  71

As at                                           As at                                    As at

30thseptember2022        30thseptember20Z1       31st Marchzozz
Closing Net Carrying Balance

Movement during the period

Opening Net Carrying Value

Addltlons

Deletlons

Accretion of Interest

Payments

Closing  Net  Carrying  Balance

Cash  Flows

5.77

64.S1

9.OS                                     16.48

64 40                            128 84

As at                                          As at                                   As at
30thseptemberzoz2        30thseptember2021       31st March 2022

Total  Cash Outflow of Lease

Amount Recognlsed in statement of Profit & loss
As at                                          As at                                    As at

30thseptember2022        30th september2021       31stMarch2022
Depreciation Expenses

Depreciation

Finance Cost

Interest  Expenses  on  lease  liabllities

Current and  non{urrent lease  llabllitles

59.73                                119.46

9.05                                16  48

Asat                                             Asat                                      Asat

30th septemberz022        30thseptember2021       31stMarch z022

Current

Non  Current

Maturity Profile of Company's future lease liabllitles based on contractual undiscounted payments

130.23                                             115. 74                              122.05

44.55                                             174  79                               111.47


